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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We have a number

          3  of very important items on the agenda.

          4                 First of which is, I am going to skip

          5  on the agenda a little bit, is Land Use Number

          6  80N040197ZRY, it is an application, an amendment to

          7  the Zoning Resolution for establishing a new

          8  category of unenclosed sidewalk cafes.

          9                 We have Commissioner Amanda Burden to

         10  testify on behalf of the Department of City

         11  Planning, Commissioner.

         12                 While she is setting up, let me

         13  introduce my colleagues that are here today.

         14  Council Member Linda Katz, Eric Gioia, Mike McMahon,

         15  Al Vann and Christine Quinn.

         16                 And, again, for everybody that is

         17  here, if you want to speak on an item, you must fill

         18  out the speakers slip by the Sergeant- At- Arms.

         19  Please indicate the item you are speaking on, and

         20  whether you are speaking in favor or in opposition.

         21                 Commissioner, good morning.

         22                 COMMISSIONER BURDEN:  Good morning,

         23  Mr. Chair.

         24                 I am extremely happy to be here this

         25  morning, especially on such a beautiful day to talk
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          2  about small sidewalk cafes, a totally new category

          3  of outdoor, sidewalk cafes, unenclosed.

          4                 Small sidewalk cafes are a wonderful

          5  urban amenity that we believe adds greatly to the

          6  vitality of street life, and to being in New York.

          7                 This proposal that you are going to

          8  see today is a very, very modest proposal but we

          9  feel it would give special pleasure to users and

         10  passers-by during the four or so months that the

         11  weather is warm.

         12                 The proposal is a framework, within

         13  which, these new small sidewalk cafes may be

         14  located.  This category of cafes is just a small

         15  row, a single row of tables that hugs the side of a

         16  building front.  Where might they occur?  Obviously,

         17  wherever a restaurant might occur but I want you to

         18  also know that these sidewalk cafes must go through

         19  a discretionary process.  They will be reviewed by

         20  community boards, by the Department of Consumer

         21  Affairs, and by the relevant council member.

         22                 We went to each community board in

         23  the City in Manhattan, where we are considering

         24  these cafes, and each community board has some

         25  recommendations and we have revised the application,
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          2  and it is a much better application then was

          3  originally, and heard very carefully the concerns of

          4  each community board.

          5                 I want to first introduce my

          6  colleague Shampa Chanda, who has been director of

          7  this application, and has shepherded it through the

          8  community boards.  She is going to explain it to

          9  you, I also want to say that we are very grateful

         10  for the Department of Consumer Affairs who is

         11  represented today by Inspector Joe Kanaly

         12  (phonetic), Alba Peeko (phonetic), and Pauline

         13  Toole, who is the Deputy Commissioner.

         14                 Why don't I let Shampa take you

         15  through the proposal, and see if you have any

         16  questions, Shampa?

         17                 MS. CHANDA:  Good morning, Council

         18  member, Chairman Avella, and members of the sub-

         19  committee.

         20                 I am really pleased to be here to

         21  make this presentation regarding the sidewalk cafe.

         22  If it is okay, I will go there?

         23                 The sidewalk cafe regulation was

         24  introduced into the zoning resolution in 1979.

         25  Since then, the regulation affecting Manhattan has
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          2  not been reviewed in a comprehensive manner.       Compared

          3  to the other boroughs, there are a disproportionate

          4  number of streets in Manhattan where today sidewalk

          5  cafes are not permitted to operate.  The Department

          6  reviewed these streets carefully, and is proposing

          7  on some of these streets, exclusively, a new

          8  category of sidewalk cafe called`small sidewalk

          9  cafe'.  Now, these cafes are unenclosed where a

         10  single of row of tables and chairs must be located

         11  within a space that is no wider than four and a half

         12  feet.

         13                 With that, let me just briefly

         14  describe the proposal.  As I said, the regulation

         15  was put in place 1979.  At that time there were two

         16  kinds of sidewalk cafes that were added into the

         17  zoning resolution.  One was the enclosed sidewalk

         18  cafe, and the unenclosed sidewalk cafe.  These cafe

         19  are generally permitted in areas where commercial

         20  and manufacturing users are allowed, and are

         21  prohibited in areas that are zoned for residential.

         22                 At the same time the 1979 regulation

         23  specified streets where sidewalk cafes would be

         24  prohibited.  This map in front of you, represents to

         25  current regulation that is in place today.  The
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          2  areas that are in tan color are the areas where,

          3  today, sidewalk cafes are permitted.  The areas that

          4  are not in shaded, are the areas zoned for

          5  residential sidewalk cafes are prohibited.         In

          6  addition as I mentioned, there is a significant

          7  number of streets that were listed in the regulation

          8  where sidewalk cafes are prohibited.  These are the

          9  streets that are marked in red.  Just for example,

         10  in the Village, the SoHo area, sidewalk cafes are

         11  not permitted, major crosstown streets, 14th, 23rd,

         12  34th Street, the entire Midtown area, Madison

         13  Avenue, Lexington, 86th Street in the Upper East

         14  Side, and further up in the Upper Manhattan section

         15  of 116th Street, Madison Avenue, Lexington, and Park

         16  Avenue.

         17                 The Department did a comprehensive

         18  review of these prohibited streets to determine

         19  where, exclusively, small sidewalk cafes would be

         20  permitted.  To make this determination, several

         21  factors were considered, including type of use,

         22  curbside activity, sidewalk width, and pedestrian

         23  volume, as these affect the utilization of the

         24  sidewalks and the character of the streets.  In many

         25  instances, actually, these factors did have
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          2  significant effects, and in such location the

          3  proposed text will continue to prohibit sidewalk

          4  cafes, and those would specifically be most of the

          5  streets in SoHo, including Broadway, 80th around

          6  Grand Central, Penn Station, and Port Authority,

          7  these are the major transit hub where you have a lot

          8  of pedestrian activities, in the Times Square area,

          9  which is a tourist area with a lot of theater

         10  related uses, Fifth Avenue, Herald Square in the

         11  Midtown area, Lexington Avenue in the Upper East

         12  Side.

         13                 In addition to that, these factors,

         14  however many cases did not have significant effect

         15  in some of the other streets, and at such location,

         16  the text that was sent for public review,

         17  recommended that small sidewalk cafes be permitted,

         18  and these were, this map is the representation of

         19  the map of the text that was sent for public review

         20  on December 1st, and according to that the sidewalk

         21  cafes were proposed on Lafayette and Center street

         22  in the Village Orchard and Delancy Street in the

         23  Lower East Side, sections of crosstown streets,

         24  major crosstown streets, 14th, 23rd, and 34th

         25  Street, areas north of 50th Street in the Midtown
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          2  area, Madison Avenue in the Upper East Side, and

          3  86th Street in the Upper East Side, and in Upper

          4  Manhattan, Lexington Avenue, Park, Madison, and

          5  section of 116th Street.

          6                 The proposed text also specified

          7  design standards for the small sidewalk cafe.  This

          8  is to ensure that these cafes are visually and

          9  physically least obtrusive, they are not an

         10  incumbrance to the pedestrian flow.

         11                 As I mentioned earlier in the

         12  introduction, these cafe are unenclosed.  They would

         13  contain no more than a single row of tables and

         14  chairs located adjacent to the property line.  No

         15  barriers would be permitted to separate the space

         16  from the rest of the sidewalk area.  Again, this

         17  would ensure that these cafes are consistent with

         18  the existing commercial uses, and also we believe

         19  this would enhance the character of the streets.

         20  This application was referred to the community board

         21  for eight affected community boards in Manhattan for

         22  their review on December 1st.

         23                 We received very positive feedback

         24  from these community boards.  All eight of the

         25  community boards voted in favor of the proposal,
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          2  however, some of the community boards did have

          3  specific recommendations.

          4                 Specifically, Community Board 3

          5  recommended elimination of Delancy Street.

          6  Community Board 4 recommended elimination of Eighth

          7  Avenue, north of 50th Street, and a section of 46th,

          8  47th, and 48th Street, west of Eighth Avenue.

          9                 Community Board 6 recommended

         10  elimination of Madison Avenue, Lexington Avenue,

         11  between 38th and 40th Street, 42nd Street east of

         12  First Avenue, and First Avenue between 56th and 59th

         13  Street.

         14                 And, finally, Community Board 8

         15  recommended elimination of 86th Street.

         16                 The Department reviewed these

         17  recommendations, considered them, and made a

         18  recommendation to the City Planning Commission, and

         19  the City Planning Commission revised the text,

         20  approved the revised text accordingly.  The revised

         21  text that is before you, is illustrated in this map.

         22    It highlights all the streets that are marked in

         23  yellow, where these streets were eliminated from the

         24  revised text that is before you, for your

         25  consideration.
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          2                 These not only include the streets,

          3  most of the streets that were recommended by the

          4  community boards but also some additional streets

          5  that the Department considered appropriate to be

          6  eliminated.

          7                 The only exception to this is the

          8  Delancy Street, the Department has considered this

          9  Board 3 recommendation.  Delancy Street is a very

         10  wide street, it has a very wide sidewalk, uniformly

         11  wide sidewalk, and however, the pedestrian activity

         12  along this street is not uniform, and at such

         13  locations, small sidewalk cafe we believe would

         14  enhance the street life at these locations.

         15                 Just, no I did not show this but if

         16  you are interested, this is how the design standard

         17  would affect a sidewalk cafe that is 15 foot wide,

         18  as opposed to a 12 foot wide sidewalk. On a 15 foot

         19  wide sidewalk, a single row of tables and chairs

         20  would have to be located within a space that is no

         21  wider than four and a half feet, provided these

         22  cafes meet all the DCA rules and regulations

         23  regarding clear path and clearance.

         24                 As Chair Burden mentioned, that this

         25  would be reviewed like any other sidewalk cafe

                                                            14

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  application that is reviewed by the Department of

          3  Consumer Affairs.  These would be enforced by the

          4  Department of Consumer Affairs.

          5                 So, with that, I would like to thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you for

          8  the presentation.

          9                 Any questions from committee members?

         10                 We have also been joined by Council

         11  Member Maria Baez.

         12                 See what a good presentation you

         13  gave?

         14                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         15                 COMMISSIONER BURDEN:  Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair, appreciate it, and thank you all.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  We have four

         18  speakers on this item, and I would like to call up

         19  James Garritson, Bob Bookman, Michael Kelly.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Are they for or

         21  against?  They are all in favor, okay, I was just

         22  going to suggest that

         23  maybe--.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  And then, we

         25  have one in opposition.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I was just

          3  going to suggest that maybe you wanted somebody from

          4  City Planning to stay in case there was opposition.

          5  I do not know, since no one asked questions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  By the way,

          7  would the Sergeant At- Arms start the clock?

          8                 For this hearing, and for every other

          9  hearing today, I will be asking each speaker to

         10  limit themselves to three minutes because we do have

         11  a rather lengthy item on next, and we do want to

         12  hear from everybody.

         13                 Gentlemen, whoever goes first.

         14                 MR. BOOKMAN:  Good morning, my name

         15  is Robert Bookman from the law firm of Pesesky and

         16  Bookman.

         17                 We are very active in the sidewalk

         18  cafe rules and regulations and filing of

         19  applications.  We would like to commend the City

         20  Planning Department and the other agencies for this

         21  very important step in the right direction of

         22  expanding a number of streets where restaurants,

         23  eating and drinking establishments can apply for

         24  sidewalk cafes.

         25                 There are currently only about a
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          2  little over 600 sidewalk cafes citywide, out of

          3  approximately 10,000 eating and drinking

          4  establishments.  So, it is hardly an overwhelming

          5  number, and anything that could be done to help this

          6  industry, I think, is an important step forward.

          7                 Having said that, we do have concerns

          8  which play, concerning the implementation of the law

          9  that you passed last year, which directly would

         10  impact this law.  These concerns, I think, need to

         11  be discussed further with the Department of Consumer

         12  Affairs.  There are a series of new placement

         13  regulations that they have adopted and new

         14  interpretations of existing placement regulations,

         15  which differ greatly from City Planning's

         16  interpretations.

         17                 So, for example, a very significant

         18  problem which was just raised in City Planning's

         19  testimony, is that these cafes will be limited to

         20  one row, no barrier, a maximum four and a half feet.

         21    The smallest table- for- two is 24 inches, as the

         22  professional architects will tell you.  Consumer

         23  Affairs, in a new regulation, is requiring a minimum

         24  three foot service isle, for all sidewalk cafes,

         25  whether or not there is a barrier, and whether or
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          2  not there are two rows.  In that situation, three

          3  plus two is five feet. None of the cafes that will

          4  be able to be approved, therefore, based on the

          5  limitation that is within the statute in front of

          6  you. If the maximum is four and a half feet, and

          7  Consumer Affairs is basically saying that the

          8  minimum cafe is five feet, or it is not approvable,

          9  then we have something of a shell game going on

         10  here, where we are giving on one hand, and taking

         11  away on the other.

         12                 We need to address these concerns,

         13  see where the, historically City Planning had only

         14  required, by the way, one and a half feet for a

         15  service isle in a situation where there was one row

         16  of tables with no barrier.  The three feet came in

         17  as an ADA requirement when there was a barrier, or

         18  when there were two rows because three feet is the

         19  minimum for clearance on an ADA issue. But, these

         20  are not ADA implicated proposals that are before you

         21  because 100 percent of the seats are accessible

         22  because there is no barrier, and it is only one row.

         23

         24                 We need to address this difference

         25  between the one and a half foot that, I believe,
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          2  City Planning contemplated when they came up with

          3  their four and a half feet, and the Consumer Affairs

          4  new regulation because, as was said by City

          5  Planning, these will have to be approved and adopted

          6  pursuant to the Consumer Affairs regs.

          7                 So, there are a number of these types

          8  of interpretations that my colleagues could speak

          9  more about but it is a concern that this Committee

         10  needs to address since last years law was also

         11  supposed to be very favorable for business, and

         12  while the process is getting much better as far as

         13  speed, these concerns do negate some of that

         14  progress.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MR. KELLY:  My name is Michael Kelly,

         17  I am an expeditor.

         18                 I am here on behalf of a lot of

         19  restaurants that are in the area.  A lot of them

         20  have asked me to come to voice their support but,

         21  also, they are worried about the new limitations,

         22  basically there are parking meters and street signs

         23  that are now obstructions that would further limit

         24  any of these sidewalk cafes. They are also limiting

         25  the cafes that have been in existence for years.  A
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          2  lot of them are loosing their tables, or would

          3  actually loose their sidewalk cafes.  That is all.

          4                 MR GARRITSON:  Can he yield the

          5  balance of his time? No, I am only kidding.

          6                 I am James Garritson, I am an

          7  architect practicing in New York for about 35 years,

          8  and the last 20 years doing sidewalk cafes.

          9                 I also am concerned about these new

         10  interpretations, such as, and their effect even on

         11  this new proposal, which I am very excited about

         12  because I, too, feel that cafes are a very vital

         13  part, sidewalk cafes are a very vital part of New

         14  York, and the New York feeling.

         15                 One of the concerns are the

         16  standpipe, and clearance of a standpipe.  I brought

         17  this up before, this can seriously effect a lot of

         18  the cafes on Second Avenue and First Avenue,

         19  existing cafes, as well as the cafes that are

         20  proposed under this new zoning proposal.

         21                 The other is the eight foot

         22  requirement from the corner of the existing cafe.

         23  It is very confusing the way it is now interpreted

         24  that, the way it is interpreted now; signs and

         25  parking meters and trees with flush grills are
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          2  considered non obstructions, except, if they are

          3  eight feet from the corner of the cafe, which does

          4  not make any sense at all.  Which means, sometimes

          5  they are obstructions and sometimes they are not

          6  obstructions. This needs to be clarified because it

          7  affects cafes, especially if you have two cafes that

          8  are very close to each other.

          9                 The other thing that I think we

         10  should take a very close look at is the effect of

         11  grandfathering.  I mean, if a cafe has been part of

         12  the New York feeling for many, many years, I mean

         13  practically landmarks, we can think of certain ones

         14  that are basically, you think of New York, and

         15  suddenly those cafes because of these

         16  reinterpretations of rules that have been approved

         17  over and over again, have now been changed for

         18  reasons which are not totally clear, I think we

         19  could loose some very valuable things to New York,

         20  and also effect the new zoning.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you,

         23  gentlemen.  Rest assured we are going to have an

         24  oversight hearing on the existing sidewalk law, and

         25  we will continue to talk about the issues as they
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          2  come up, and we will certainly take your comments

          3  into serious consideration.

          4                 I have one speaker in opposition, and

          5  I am sorry I cannot read the last name, Amanda

          6  Squadrilli?

          7                 She had to leave, okay.

          8                 Does City Planning want to comment at

          9  all?

         10                 MR. KANALY:  The regulations that are

         11  in front of you today do not affect any existing

         12  cafes, only permits cafes on streets where they were

         13  not permitted now.

         14                 It may be a misunderstanding about

         15  the four and a half foot rule.  The cafe is, the

         16  small cafe is defined as a small cafe where there

         17  are such tables and chairs occupy a space on the

         18  sidewalk no greater than four and a half feet.

         19                 So, it is just the tables and chairs

         20  themselves that are limited to four and a half feet.

         21    It does not limit the requirement that Consumer

         22  Affairs has for way to service, so only the tables

         23  and chairs can occupy four and a half feet.  The

         24  other Consumer Affairs regulations, as Shampa said

         25  earlier, still apply.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any questions?

          3  Thanks.

          4                 If there is no one else signed up to

          5  speak on this item, I will close the public hearing

          6  on it.

          7                 Council member Christine Quinn.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I am sorry, if

          9  City Planning could just come back, I do actually

         10  have a question if you don't mind.  You do not need

         11  to bring the boards though, that is okay.

         12                 I am sorry, I was out of the room

         13  when you testified before but I want to ask about a

         14  particular corner in my district, if that is okay,

         15  that was in the original proposal, just to confirm

         16  that it had been taken out.

         17                 Sixth Avenue and 42nd Street was

         18  originally designated as a spot that would be

         19  accepting, so to speak, small sidewalk cafes.  I had

         20  requested that it be taken out because I think that

         21  is a pretty busy corner there that is also slated

         22  for a new building, so I thought it would get

         23  busier, and I just want to confirm that that was

         24  taken out.  City Hall staff had indicated to my

         25  staff that the streets including that one that I had
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          2  raised concerns about, and that my community boards

          3  had raised concerns about were taken out, so I just

          4  want to confirm that.

          5                 MR. KANALY:  Okay, we checking the

          6  regs now.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Sure.

          8                 MR. KANALY:  Could you repeat the

          9  exact location?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Avenue of the

         11  Americas and West 42nd Street.

         12                 MS. CHANDA:  The proposed text as

         13  revised, that is before you, did not eliminate 42nd

         14  Street west of 6th--.

         15                 MR. KANALY:  It is permitted.

         16                 MS. CHANDA:  It did not eliminate it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  That is

         18  somewhat problematic because my staff had

         19  conversations with the Office of Legislative

         20  Affairs, who said that they had spoken with folks at

         21  City Planning, and that both that street and that

         22  all of the concerns raised by Community Board 2, 4

         23  and 5 were addressed.

         24                 MS. CHANDA:  Right, Board 4 did

         25  recommend elimination of Eighth Avenue, north of
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          2  50th Street, and the spur west of Eighth Avenue

          3  along 46th, 47th, and 48th Street, those streets

          4  were eliminated.

          5                 Furthermore, Board 6 had made the

          6  recommendation of eliminating Madison Avenue and

          7  Lexington Avenue, between 38th and 40th Street,

          8  those streets were eliminated.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  What about the

         10  concerns of Board 2 and 5?

         11                 MS. CHANDA:  Board 2 did not--.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  You are right.

         13    Go ahead, keep going with the other two.

         14                 MS. CHANDA:  I think Board 2's issue

         15  was just a clarification of the text.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right, that is

         17  right.

         18                 MS. CHANDA:  Which was the text

         19  clarified to address that.

         20                 As I mentioned, the only

         21  recommendation that was not taken into the revision

         22  is the Delancy Street.  All the other streets that

         23  were recommended by other community boards were

         24  considered.

         25                 In addition, there were other streets
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          2  that the Department had also recommended

          3  elimination.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Well, that is

          5  great and I am glad that is not in my district but I

          6  am glad the other stuff around Eighth Avenue was

          7  taken out, but I specifically, personally, in a

          8  meeting with the staff at the Department of City

          9  Planning, raised concerns about Sixth Avenue and

         10  42nd Street myself, and my staff specifically asked

         11  about that last week in preparation for this

         12  hearing, and we were told it was taken out, so, I am

         13  just very concerned that we were given incorrect

         14  information, you know obviously, it may just have

         15  been an error.

         16                 I did not think to clarify it on the

         17  record because I have historically taken off Civil

         18  Legislative Affairs at their word, I have duly noted

         19  never to do that again, and to always check.  Thank

         20  goodness I did.

         21                 So, I, Mr. Chair, have a concern

         22  because I appreciate that you listened to my

         23  community boards immensely, though I am distressed

         24  you listened to them more than me, and so, I do not

         25  know what we can do, perhaps we can amend it and
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          2  remove Sixth Avenue.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Well, that is

          4  what I would like to ask City Planning, and I think

          5  we are trying to get staff behind you.  Would you

          6  object if we amended the application to exclude

          7  those streets that Council Member Christine just

          8  talked about?  I will give you a minute.

          9                 The thumb went up, so Christine you

         10  got your--.

         11                 MS. CHANDA:  There was a

         12  miscommunication, and we apologize.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         14                 COMMISSIONER BURDEN:  I certainly

         15  apologize.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         17                 COMMISSIONER BURDEN:  We actually, we

         18  made several attempts to outreach, and to

         19  accommodate any of your concerns.  I know you wrote

         20  a number of concerns in a letter, and we actually

         21  outreached, last week a couple of times, cannot tell

         22  you why it did not happen, but of course we would

         23  accommodate your concerns.  That has been the

         24  essence of this proposal to really respond, and now

         25  that we hear them it is actually fine.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Great, thank

          3  you.

          4                 COMMISSIONER BURDEN:  Absolutely no

          5  problem, and that is the key with this, these

          6  sidewalk cafes are terrific, and really it is the

          7  community boards and the representatives who

          8  understand best where they can be located or not,

          9  so, of course, absolutely.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I appreciate

         11  that, and when we asked if our concerns had been

         12  addressed, perhaps we did not enumerate them clearly

         13  enough.  But that is terrific that we can address it

         14  now, so, thank you very much.

         15                 COMMISSIONER BURDEN:  Absolutely no

         16  problem.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  What we will do

         19  is, we will when it comes for the vote, we will make

         20  an amendment.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  We will now move

         23  on to the items on the agenda.  We are going to go

         24  through the rest of them very quickly, except for

         25  170.
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          2                 Land Use Number 33C030293ZRM,

          3  application in Staten Island, which was laid over

          4  from the March 22nd meeting.  We were scheduled to

          5  have a vote this morning, we will lay it over to

          6  Wednesday, we will have another meeting of the sub-

          7  committee before the Land Use Committee meets to

          8  vote on this item.

          9                 Land Use Number 81, 82, 83, which are

         10  all related, N030228ZRY and C030229ZSM and

         11  C030230PPM, application by Columbia University is

         12  being laid over until April 27th, and Land Use

         13  Number 133C030289ZMK is also being laid over for

         14  April 27th.

         15                 That leaves us with the last item on

         16  today's agenda.               Before I start that, I

         17  would like to take a vote on the sidewalk cafe

         18  legislation with the amendment as proposed by

         19  Council Member Christine Quinn.

         20                 Chair recommends approval with the

         21  amendment.

         22                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Chair

         23  Avella.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Aye.

         25                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council
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          2  Member Quinn.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you for

          4  adding the amendment, both to City Planning and to

          5  the Chair, and I vote aye.

          6                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

          7  Member Baez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  Aye.

          9                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         10  Member Gioia.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Aye.

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         13  Member Katz.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I vote aye, and

         15  to explain my vote if I might.

         16                 I just want to thank the City

         17  Planning Commission, and everyone involved in the

         18  sidewalk cafe.  They really made a concerted effort

         19  for many, many months now in order to brief folks

         20  that are affected by this, and to make sure that

         21  what they are doing is well known to the council

         22  members, and I want to really thank them for that

         23  and also being responsive.  It certainly makes life

         24  a lot easier for all of us when we have a good

         25  relationship with the agency, so, thank you and I
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          2  vote aye.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

          4  Member Vann.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Aye.

          6                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  The vote

          7  stands at 6 in the affirmative, none in the

          8  negative, and no abstentions, and are referred to

          9  the Full Land Use Committee.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Now we move on

         11  to probably the more controversial item of the day.

         12                 Intro. Number 170, 20045404LLY,

         13  application to amend the Charter of the City of New

         14  York in relation to appealing decisions of the Board

         15  of Standards and Appeals, granting or denying

         16  variances or special permits pursuant to the Zoning

         17  Resolution of the City of New York.

         18                 As the author of this bill, I have a

         19  brief statement and then we will move on to the

         20  public testimony.

         21                 Intro. 170 would amend the Charter of

         22  the City of New York in relation to appealing

         23  decisions of BSA granting or denying variances or

         24  special permits pursuant to the resolution. BSA is a

         25  body composed of five commissioners, each appointed
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          2  by the Mayor to serve a six year term.

          3  Unfortunately, BSA continues to grant variances and

          4  special permits in direct contradiction to publicly

          5  stated recommendations of community boards, civic

          6  groups, and elected officials.  It has become an

          7  entity unto itself, which acts with little or no

          8  concern for the opinion of those whose lives are

          9  most affected by its decisions. The only recourse

         10  available to community boards and civic groups, it

         11  to bring BSA into court to challenge their

         12  decisions.  No government body comprise solely of

         13  appointed positions should wield this kind of power,

         14  which significantly impacts the quality of life

         15  within this City.

         16                 Power should be vested in elected

         17  officials who are responsive to the desires and

         18  opinions they represent.  The bill will reestablish

         19  the review process over variance and special permit

         20  decisions that was previously held by the former

         21  Board of Estimate.

         22                 The City Council now has the

         23  authority through the Charters call- up mechanism to

         24  assert jurisdiction over special permits granted by

         25  the City Planning Commission.
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          2                 Currently, there is no type of review

          3  for such actions taken by BSA.  This bill would

          4  establish a much needed check on the Board of

          5  Standards and Appeals.  It will return power to the

          6  community by giving elected officials the right of

          7  review over BSA decisions.  Preservation of

          8  neighborhoods and quality of life will again be

          9  paramount considerations in Land Use decision

         10  making.

         11                 What we will do is, we have an awful

         12  lot of speakers on this.  I will call up panels of

         13  four, first some in support, then in opposition,

         14  then in support, then in opposition.

         15                 I will ask everybody, please, to keep

         16  to the three minutes.  I know this is a hot topic,

         17  but we want to make sure that everybody gets a

         18  chance to speak.

         19                 The first panel I will call up, and

         20  in no significant order, please, I apologize for

         21  that.  The first panel will be in favor, Sadie Dyer

         22  for Assemblywoman Deborah Glick, Paul Goldstein from

         23  Community Board 1 in Manhattan, Jennifer Roth from

         24  the New York Industrial Retention Network, and

         25  Mitchell Grubler from the Queens Historical Society.
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          2                 MS. DYER: I am Sadie Dyer, and I am

          3  here --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Speak a little

          5  louder.  Is the button on?

          6                 MS. DYER:  No, it is not.  Now it is

          7  on.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  When the light

          9  is off, the mic is on.  Of course, reverse of normal

         10  logic.  Go ahead.

         11                 MS. DYER:  My name is Sadie Dyer, and

         12  I am here for Assembly member Deborah Glick, who is

         13  in Albany today.

         14                 As the Assembly member representing

         15  the neighborhoods of Union Square, NoHo, SoHo,

         16  Tribeca, and the Village, I have witnessed numerous

         17  instances of the BSA's ineffectiveness, or perhaps,

         18  unwillingness to stop the intrusion of inappropriate

         19  buildings into our neighborhoods.  The intent of

         20  zoning laws is to preserve the nature of each of our

         21  communities, many with deep historical roots, and

         22  all with a unique atmosphere of their own.

         23                 I understand the importance of

         24  development, and I hope to see this City to grow and

         25  change in ways consistent with respect to our
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          2  historic roots.  There is a difference between

          3  appropriate development, and that which defies the

          4  context of its surroundings.

          5                 New York City has neighborhoods with

          6  hi- rises, and those that are coveted because of

          7  their low- rise nature.  There is no good reason why

          8  developers should be allowed to build tall glass

          9  towers in historic districts like Tribeca and NoHo.

         10                 The BSA has become an agency focused

         11  on protecting the profits of developers, rather than

         12  seeking what is best for the community.

         13                 When a developer pays too much for a

         14  lot with strict zoning, the BSA is all to eager to

         15  grant a variance so that the owner can develop the

         16  lot beyond the proper limits.

         17                 In the case of 408 Greenwich Street,

         18  the BSA granted a bulk variance to allow an

         19  apartment tower nearly twice the height of

         20  neighboring buildings.

         21                 Rewarding cynical developers by

         22  permitting them to claim hardship for conditions

         23  known and existing, at the time of purchase, is a

         24  breech of public trust.

         25                 The BSA makes its decisions without
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          2  properly considering the actual merits of the

          3  application, nor the views of elected officials,

          4  community boards and neighborhood organizations.

          5                 I have testified at countless BSA

          6  hearings on behalf of the constituents that I

          7  represent, only to see the Board to disregard my

          8  comments and the concerns of community boards and

          9  residents who spend hours weighing the arguments of

         10  developers and opponents drafting well thought out

         11  resolutions.

         12                 Government is based on the principle

         13  of checks and balances, unfortunately, the BSA has

         14  been able to issue variances with no oversight.

         15                 I strongly support the proposed bill,

         16  which would give the City Council the right to

         17  review the BSA's decisions.  If the BSA continues to

         18  rubber- stamp applications, there must be some

         19  accountability for these decisions which will

         20  actually respond to community input.

         21                 I urge the City Council to pass this

         22  bill, thank you.

         23                 I have many copies for people in the

         24  audience.

         25                 MR. GRUBLER:  Good morning, I am
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          2  Mitchell Grubler. I am the Executive Director of the

          3  Queens Historical Society, and also the Vice

          4  President of the Preservation League of Staten

          5  Island.

          6                 I wish to thank the Chairman and the

          7  other members of the sub- committee for this

          8  opportunity to speak about the proposed local law to

          9  create a Council review appeals process for

         10  decisions rendered by the Board of Standards and

         11  Appeals.

         12                 Way too often, we here in Queens and

         13  in the other boroughs, are frustrated by the seeming

         14  impunity with which the BSA grants variances that

         15  have far reaching and long lasting detrimental

         16  effects on the quality of life in our neighborhoods,

         17  and I am especially concerned about our older and

         18  historic neighborhoods.

         19                 We rely on zoning laws and

         20  regulations to protect our neighborhoods and our

         21  quality of life but, what good are zoning

         22  protections when the BSA grants variances in 93

         23  percent of the cases brought before it?

         24                 Developers and builders know the

         25  BSA's track record, and know they can circumvent
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          2  existing zoning with impunity. Granted appeals to

          3  zoning regulations on a case by case basis are

          4  valid, and important ways to make zoning work for

          5  people in our complex city.  However, that appeals

          6  process should have oversight by the people we have

          7  elected to represent our best interests, the members

          8  of the City Council.

          9            Under the current BSA process, Walgreens

         10  was allowed to build a store in the community of

         11  College Point without the usually mandated number of

         12  off- street parking spaces.

         13                 In a residential neighborhood in

         14  Bayside, the BSA granted not one, but five variances

         15  to allow one house to be demolished, and replaced by

         16  a building to accommodate 300 to 400 people with no

         17  off- street parking.

         18                 The current process, with virtually

         19  no oversight authority does not work for the

         20  majority of citizens of this City. A Council review

         21  of the appeals process for decisions of the BSA

         22  ensures that the voices of the people of this City

         23  will be heard.  Simply put, it makes the process a

         24  democratic one.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MS. ROTH:  Good morning, my name is

          3  Jennifer Roth. I am the Director of Research at the

          4  New York Industrial Retention Network.  I will be

          5  reading a statement by my Executive Director, Adam

          6  Friedman who, regretfully, could not attend today.

          7                 Good morning, my name is Adam

          8  Friedman and I am the Executive Director of the New

          9  York Industrial Retention Network, a citywide, non-

         10  profit economic development organization that is

         11  dedicated to strengthening New York City's

         12  manufacturing sector based on principles of economic

         13  and environmental justice.

         14                 I am also here as part of the Zoning

         15  For Jobs campaign, a citywide coalition of more than

         16  40 organizations, from the United Auto Workers to

         17  Sustainable South Bronx, that is advocating for new

         18  zoning and land use tools that will not only help to

         19  retain but to create blue- collar jobs.  Reform of

         20  the BSA is high on Zoning For Jobs' agenda.

         21                 I would like to commend Council

         22  Member Avella for his leadership on reform of the

         23  Board of Standards and Appeals. The BSA in the past

         24  several years has wielded unchecked power over on of

         25  the City's most precious resources, land, and has
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          2  become this City's de- facto department of City

          3  Planning.  This was never the purpose of the Board,

          4  nor should it be.

          5                 NYIRN works with over 400

          6  manufacturing companies a year, over half of which

          7  require some type of real estate assistance.  A

          8  study by the Economic Development Corporation

          9  concluded that real estate costs and real estate

         10  instability were two of the top challenges facing

         11  manufacturers today.  Much of that instability comes

         12  from the BSA:  184 Kent Avenue, 55 Berry,

         13  848 Washington, 160 Imlay Street these are just a a

         14  few of the cases that have had monumental impacts on

         15  communities, businesses and jobs.

         16                 One of the reasons the BSA was able

         17  to stray so far off course was because of a lack of

         18  oversight and cumbersome appeal process.  Time and

         19  time again, property owners claimed hardships

         20  despite the fact that they had only recently bought

         21  property and the hardships were self- created.

         22  Owners claimed no impacts on neighborhood character

         23  when the site was surrounded by thriving blue-

         24  collar businesses.  And, they claimed their

         25  properties were obsolete for modern day
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          2  manufacturing before they had even made a good faith

          3  effort to market the space.

          4                 The BSA has granted variances under

          5  all of these false claims, even when there was

          6  significant community opposition.

          7                 The legislation before you today is a

          8  tremendous first step.  Restoring an appeals process

          9  to the Board of Standards and Appeals, similar to

         10  the process that existed at the Board of Estimate,

         11  is crucial.

         12                 I worked on the Board of Estimate,

         13  and I suspect that appeals will actually be

         14  infrequent because the BSA will be much more careful

         15  to scrutinize the evidence just knowing that an

         16  appeals process exists.

         17                 NYIRN also supports the

         18  recommendations put forth by the Municipal Art

         19  Society in their call for a zoning coordinator at

         20  the Department of City Planning, for adding

         21  financial and real estate expertise to the Board, to

         22  including the BSA in the Mayor's Management Reports

         23  and to strengthening the five findings in the City

         24  Charter.

         25                 It would be particularly important to
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          2  limit hardship claims for owners who recently

          3  purchased the property and we would advocate for

          4  legislation following up on this point.

          5                 The BSA serves a necessary purpose.

          6  There needs to be a remedy for zoning that is so

          7  obsolete that it deprives an owner of the use of his

          8  property.  However, when that recourse is abused

          9  again and again, reform is necessary.

         10                 Too many jobs have been lost because

         11  the BSA has existed without any type of

         12  accountability.  This legislation will go a long way

         13  in protecting many more.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Good morning, Paul

         16  Goldstein, District Manager, Community Board 1.

         17                 Thank you for sponsoring this

         18  legislation.  The Community Board does take very

         19  seriously, as do other community boards, our role in

         20  the oversight of land use decisions in the City, and

         21  I think it is fair to say that we have a pretty

         22  strong record in terms of supporting development,

         23  certainly here in Lower Manhattan, the district we

         24  represent, south of Canal Street.

         25                 We are currently experiencing
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          2  tremendous growth throughout our district, both in

          3  the residential and in the commercial sectors, and

          4  we support a tremendous amount of that.

          5                 Now, on the other hand, I think it is

          6  also fair to say, and as was cited by Sadie for

          7  Assembly Member Glick, there are clear examples

          8  where developers come in and abuse the rights that

          9  they have under the current system.  408 Greenwich

         10  Street, I will cite again as a good example, to

         11  property that was purchased just a year ago in

         12  January, by a company which is the tenth leading

         13  underwriter of municipal bonds in the nation.

         14  Clearly, this is not exactly a company which is

         15  suffering, which has a hardship, it paid quite a bit

         16  of money for the building knowing exactly what the

         17  zoning called for, and allowed for and yet, they

         18  turned around and within a year, just over a year,

         19  they were able to turn around and get a variance to

         20  build beyond the zoning in Tribeca.

         21                 Now, I think it is also fair to say,

         22  anyone who knows Tribeca, it is a thriving community

         23  where development is just going on throughout the

         24  area, and very few of the developers have had to

         25  resort to hardship variances to make a go of it, and
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          2  to be very successful.  Hardship and Tribeca really

          3  does not even go in the same sentence.

          4                 I think there are other options

          5  available for developers and for others who do not

          6  like the zoning.  The Community Board itself, when

          7  we did not like the zoning, tried to rezone an area

          8  in the South Street Seaport, and we were able to do

          9  it.  This is an option that we should all look at.

         10                 In other words, thinks have to be

         11  done with the system, it does not work.  We support

         12  the bill, and I will leave it to the other speakers

         13  to embellish on that.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you, any

         16  questions?

         17                 Thank you, ladies and gentlemen.

         18                 Next panel will be in opposition,

         19  this is going to be fun.  Let us do Sheldon Lobel,

         20  Donald Halperin, Ken Lowenstein, and Joseph

         21  Morsellino.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Mr.

         23  Chairman?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  May I have
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          2  leave to vote on the item LU80, I think it was, that

          3  was voted on previously?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Absolutely.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I vote yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Wait, you have

          7  got to be counted.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Okay.

          9                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         10  Member McMahon.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I vote yes.

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Six in the

         13  affirmative, none in the negative, and no

         14  abstentions.  They are referred to the Full Land Use

         15  Committee.

         16                 MR. LOBEL:  Good morning, Mr.

         17  Chairman, thank you for giving us the opportunity of

         18  attending this hearing, members of your Committee.

         19                 My name if Sheldon Lobel.  I have

         20  been practicing in the area of land use and planning

         21  and zoning for approximately 35 years, and presently

         22  also serve, in addition to being a practitioner,

         23  serve as President of the Zoning Advisory Council. We

         24  represent many people, we represent some people in

         25  Manhattan.  We also represent many people in the
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          2  boroughs.  Many of them come to us, who are

          3  desperate, they are loosing money on their

          4  buildings.  They have vacant buildings, and

          5  sometimes I wonder whether blaming the Board of

          6  Standards and Appeals is really the avenue but in

          7  many of those vacant loft buildings, people went out

          8  of business because of the Free Trade Act, and

          9  whether you like NAFTA of not, that is what our

         10  government gave us.

         11                 As you all know, we do not have to

         12  give you all the facts about all the products that

         13  are being made out of this country, so, blaming the

         14  Board of Standards and Appeals is the mosquito being

         15  swatted, and really you should be swatting the

         16  elephant.

         17                 The fundamental principle of our

         18  system of government, is the separation of powers

         19  between the Executive, Legislative and Judicial

         20  branches of government.

         21                 That was a principle given to us by

         22  some pretty brilliant men and women, mostly men at

         23  that time; the framers of the Constitution.

         24                 They saw fit not to concentrate too

         25  much power in any branch.  That is one of the
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          2  bulwarks of our constitution, and our system.  Too

          3  much power is something we found out, whether it be

          4  legislative, judicial, or executive is not the

          5  system that we have chosen to operate under.  And,

          6  our City has likewise separated these powers.

          7                 The City Council legislates, and even

          8  though the City Planning Commission promulgates the

          9  zoning resolution, it is your City Council that

         10  adopts the legislation which governs zoning, which

         11  is the law in New York City, and now there is a

         12  proposal for the same body that proposes and adopts

         13  the legislation, and must review the decisions of

         14  the Board of Standards and Appeals, and that is a

         15  board by City Charter, and since 1916 has been

         16  composed of expert people, engineers, architects,

         17  planners to review applications for variances.

         18                 I may add also, I wanted to correct

         19  the Chairman that the members of the Board of

         20  Standards and Appeals are proposed by the Mayor, but

         21  are confirmed by the City Council, so your Council

         22  presently confirms the members of the Board of

         23  Standards and Appeals, and now you want to say to

         24  the Board, "well we will confirm you but next time

         25  you come around, if you do not do the things that we
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          2  want to do, then we may not reappoint you".  That to

          3  us is wrong.

          4                 We would like to also cite a decision

          5  of the Attorney General in 1976, which said that the

          6  authority to grant variances is in a Board of

          7  Appeals, it cannot be vested in a Board, a

          8  legislative board.

          9                 I will not continue much more, I just

         10  want to conclude by saying that the Board of

         11  Standards and Appeals does make tough decisions, and

         12  I have been a party to a number of those decisions,

         13  which turned down my clients who needed an

         14  enlargement, who needed to have some residential

         15  people in a building, who saw the conditions in the

         16  neighborhood.  But the Board of Standards and

         17  Appeals because of Community Board input, or other

         18  input, turned those cases down.

         19                 We think that a body that makes the

         20  laws, should not be reviewing the body that has been

         21  given the power to grant variances.

         22                 To me, it is similar to the Congress

         23  who review the appointments of federal judges.  They

         24  do review the appointments of those judges, if they

         25  approve them or disapprove them, then that is what
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          2  happens but that same Congress does not review the

          3  decisions of those judges.  That would be a terrible

          4  travesty, if in our Congress, we had legislators who

          5  reviewed the decisions of judges because the popular

          6  will, or whatever it is, says that those decisions

          7  might be wrong.  The fundamental concept of our

          8  government, and I think of your Council, should be

          9  that there is a separation, and the fact that some

         10  people may complain, we have plenty people who

         11  agree, you should not intrude on this independent

         12  body.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 MR. HALPERIN:  Good morning Chairman

         15  Avella, and members of the subcommittee.

         16                 My name is Donald Halperin, and I am

         17  here today representing the New York State

         18  Association for Affordable Housing, commonly known

         19  as NYSAFAH, an organization of developers and others

         20  involved in financing and building of affordable

         21  housing.  The bulk of our 200 members work

         22  throughout New York City's five boroughs and are

         23  collectively responsible for most of the housing

         24  built with city, state, or federal subsidies in New

         25  York City in recent years.
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          2                 I am accompanied here today by Ken

          3  Lowenstein of the law firm of Weil Gotshal, who is

          4  serving as counsel to NYSAFAH on this particular

          5  issue today.

          6                 While NYSAFAH understands the

          7  frustration sometimes felt by communities and

          8  elected officials who represent them when a

          9  governmental entity arrives at a decision contrary

         10  to their wishes, we feel that the approach taken by

         11  Intro. 170 would do much more harm than it would do

         12  good.

         13                 The City Council and its members have

         14  often expressed concern over the inadequate supply

         15  of affordable housing. It is currently very

         16  difficult to develop housing in New York City within

         17  affordable parameters, with the cost of development

         18  inflated, and available sites difficult to find.

         19  These two factors significantly contribute to the

         20  affordable housing shortage.

         21                 Obtaining a variance is now an

         22  expensive and time consuming process.  This bill

         23  adds the potential for making the finding of an

         24  appropriate site even more difficult and costly,

         25  while increasing the uncertainty of final approval.
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          2  Developers faced with the opportunity of taking on a

          3  project where a variance is necessary, must factor

          4  in the risks, costs and time.  The only possible

          5  result of increasing these factors is to further

          6  discourage the development of affordable housing or

          7  to add to

          8  its cost.

          9                 Zoning variances are a necessary and

         10  constitutionally mandated relief valve designed to

         11  prevent the zoning resolution from illegally

         12  restricting a property owner's right to use their

         13  property.

         14                 That is why the zoning resolution

         15  sets forth five detailed findings that must be made

         16  by the BSA before it can approve a variance.  If it

         17  fails to make any one of the findings, the BSA must

         18  deny the variance application.

         19                 Under this bill, the City Council

         20  would be required to review each of these findings,

         21  and determine if there was sufficient evidence to

         22  support it.

         23                 The City Council is a legislative

         24  body, but this legislation would require it to act

         25  as a quasi- judicial body with each member having to
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          2  apply each of the findings to the case before it,

          3  analyzing the zoning, reviewing technical financial

          4  analyses, knowing the applicable case law, et

          5  cetera.

          6                 I suggest that it is neither

          7  practical nor realistic for City Council members,

          8  who are already extremely busy fulfilling their

          9  current obligations, to undertake such duties.

         10                 This is the same conclusion that the

         11  Charter Review Commission arrived at when it decided

         12  not to give the Council the authority exercised by

         13  the Board of Estimate to review variances.

         14                 Obviously, numerous departments,

         15  agencies and offices of City government make

         16  thousands of decisions on an

         17  on- going basis, any of which might be second-

         18  guessed by the public or the City Council.

         19  Nevertheless, in the interest of maintaining an

         20  orderly functioning municipal government, these

         21  decisions are ceded to these executive entities.

         22                 When a community opposes a

         23  development proposal, it will often turn to any

         24  vehicle that is available to win the day.          For

         25  example, the issuance of a permit unrelated to the
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          2  reasons for the opposition that would normally be

          3  issued in due course, can become a battleground.

          4                 Should this bill to become law, the

          5  Council, as an elected body which must take into

          6  account its constituents' sentiments, could be

          7  unduly pressured to arrive at a decision aimed at

          8  achieving an end result rather than objectively

          9  applying the criteria established in law.

         10                 We appreciate having had the

         11  opportunity to testify today, and stand ready to

         12  answer any questions that the Members may have.

         13                 We also hope that should the Council

         14  continue to believe that the variance process, as

         15  currently practiced by the Board of Standards and

         16  Appeals, could use improvement, that you seek to

         17  improve that process and not completely subvert it.

         18                 MR. MORSELLINO:  My name if Joseph

         19  Morsellino, I have been practicing for over 35

         20  years.

         21                 I really cannot emphasize too much

         22  the problem of making the process before the Board

         23  of Standards and Appeals even more cumbersome, and

         24  more costly than it presently is.

         25                 Over the years, the process has
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          2  become costly, and we find that out of ten inquiries

          3  that we receive, originally we would take about

          4  seven, now we take less than three.  The reason

          5  being, that the process not only has become more

          6  expensive, but the number of cases that the Board

          7  deems adequate, under the findings, has decreased

          8  over the years, so, the standard that we are

          9  applying is a lot different.

         10                 I cannot help but feeling that the is

         11  a "sour grapes" backlash here.  One of the cases

         12  that was mentioned was the Walgreens in College

         13  Point.

         14                 What they failed to tell you about

         15  that case was that, number one, all of the retail

         16  stores in that area have no parking.

         17                 What they failed to tell you is that

         18  the,`as of right' development of that site, would

         19  have resulted in four retail stores with a square

         20  footage greater than the one Walgreens store. What

         21  they failed to tell you was that, and not only a

         22  survey, but the oppositions own pictures showed more

         23  than adequate parking across the street in the

         24  municipal lot.  None of these items are mentioned to

         25  you.  So, that there was tremendous support in that
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          2  case for the Boards' decision.  It was not an

          3  arbitrary decision, and I would imagine that if you

          4  analyze the other cases that were mentioned to you,

          5  much of the same would be true.

          6                 So, I really urge you not to pass

          7  this legislation but to try and work with the Board,

          8  try and tighten up 7221, and in fact, I think you

          9  would be doing everyone a favor if you would

         10  eliminate the A and B findings because the

         11  financials, as far as I am concerned, they are

         12  peculiar to New York City, no other region has those

         13  findings, and I do not think that they are the main

         14  proof that you should present to the Board.  And, I

         15  think the communities agree with that.

         16                 What is important is the character of

         17  the area that you are going into, and I think that

         18  should be the primary consideration.  7221 is long

         19  overdue for overhaul, work with 7221 and work with

         20  the Board, and we will have a better city.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I am sure we are

         22  going to have some questions, so, sit there for a

         23  few minutes.

         24                 I, first of all, have a couple of

         25  comments.  One of which, Mr. Morsellino, I do not
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          2  think you meant to say about sour grapes.

          3                 I hope you were not inferring that,

          4  because that particular item happens to be in my

          5  district, that I am recommending this bill because

          6  of sour grapes.

          7                 MR. MORSELLINO:  No.  What I meant is

          8  that you have community activists that are posed,

          9  these cases that the Board of Standards and Appeals

         10  does, is not referring to you or to the Council.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Because it is my

         12  bill.

         13                 MR. MORSELLINO:  Yes, as far as--.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  And, it happens

         15  to be in my district.

         16                 MR. MORSELLINO:  I am not

         17  referring--.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Which is

         19  coincidence.

         20                 MR. MORSELLINO:  No, I am not

         21  referring to you.

         22                 I am referring to, in general, people

         23  who oppose cases at the Board.  What they fail to

         24  mention to you or to other, to the media, is that

         25  there was another side, and they are not mentioning
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          2  that other side to you, and they are not mentioning

          3  it to the media when they talk about these cases.

          4  It is not as if the Board looked at this case, and

          5  arbitrarily granted it.  There was argument on both

          6  sides, and what the Board found was that the

          7  arguments on the side of the application, were

          8  stronger than the opposition, and the sour grapes

          9  that I am referring to is the opposition that

         10  appears at these hearings, and if they do not win,

         11  they try to fight the case again, either in the

         12  media, or with local representatives.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I would just

         14  agree with you because actually I did oppose that

         15  application, and I do not believe the reasoning was

         16  there.  I mean, if I remember, well, I am not even

         17  going to get into the individual situation.

         18                 Council Member Katz.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Gentlemen, we

         20  thank you for coming here today, and for your

         21  testimony.

         22                 I have a question, you guys probably

         23  work with the BSA almost more than anybody I know,

         24  and by the way, let me welcome Weil Gotshals'

         25  attorney.  I was a Mergers and Acquisitions attorney
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          2  for Weil Gotshal for five years, so, I think you are

          3  doing unfair lobbying here.

          4                 The communities obviously feel that

          5  variances are granted, even though they are in

          6  opposition to certain things going into their

          7  district.  They obviously have that feeling, it is

          8  whether, I can point to examples where a lot of the

          9  communities opposition on certain things had been

         10  taken into account, and once it gets to the BSA, a

         11  lot times things have been amended. Sometimes it is

         12  not, but the question is, obviously you know that

         13  its recommendation authority only, so I guess my

         14  question for you is, since you work so much with the

         15  BSA, is there any recommendations you can make that

         16  should be happening internally with the BSA, in

         17  order to give communities a little more of a say on

         18  what is going on in their own neighborhoods?

         19                 MR. LOBEL:  Sheldon Lobel again, I

         20  would say that I think that the Board considers the,

         21  let the Board defend themselves but we deal with the

         22  communities, it is part of the application that we

         23  must, as soon as we file the application with the

         24  Board of Standards and Appeals, we file a copy with

         25  the City Council person, we file a copy with the

                                                            58

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Borough President, and also with the Community

          3  Board.  And oftentimes, the conditions or the

          4  suggestions or requests that are made by the City,

          5  the Community Board, are incorporated in the Board

          6  of Standards and Appeals resolutions. And, we also,

          7  when the Community Board makes the recommendation, I

          8  know my office, we usually unless it is something

          9  outlandish, we usually go along with it and it

         10  becomes part of our case also.

         11                 So, I do not know what the numbers

         12  are Council Person, whether how many cases are

         13  opposed--.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Do me a favor,

         15  call me Melinda instead of Council Person.

         16                 MR. LOBEL:  Melinda, but I do not

         17  know how many cases opposed by the Board are also

         18  granted and vice versa, I do not know the numbers.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  But, I guess my

         20  question is like Mr. Morsellino was saying, maybe we

         21  should work internally with the BSA, if we think

         22  that there are issues that need to be resolved.

         23                 What I am trying to just really get

         24  at is, there is a sense out there, so the question

         25  is, how do you attack the sense, I mean, it is only
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          2  a recommendation authority, and when you go to our

          3  community boards what they say is, "well, we make

          4  recommendations, and sometimes they are taken and

          5  sometimes they are not", which I understand.  And, I

          6  do believe just for the record, that this BSA, I

          7  have had a lot better experience with this BSA than

          8  I have in the past, just for the record.

          9                 So, I guess what I am curious about,

         10  maybe Mr. Morsellino needs to answer this is, what

         11  specific recommendations you might be able to make

         12  in order to make communities feel like they have

         13  more of an input on the variance process?

         14                 MR. MORSELLINO:  Well, I know as far

         15  as our office is concerned we start working with the

         16  community prior to our filing a case at the Board,

         17  particularly if it is a large land use question.  We

         18  schedule meetings through the community board, and

         19  meet with their land use committees well before we

         20  even file the case, so that they have some input

         21  into the evolving process of designing whatever it

         22  is that we are proposing.

         23                 I would say that if anything, the

         24  Board could, perhaps, encourage land use committee

         25  meetings prior to the scheduling of the hearing, so
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          2  that you can get a sense of what the communities

          3  reaction is to a particular proposal.  But, I think

          4  that many people that are not making noise feel that

          5  if the process is working as it presently is,

          6  depending on the applications, and depending on what

          7  the presentation is before the community board.    There

          8  are many people on the community boards who feel

          9  that the major part of the applications before them,

         10  the Board of Standards and Appeals does go along

         11  with the community board.               Very often

         12  the board may go against it because the basis of the

         13  opposition was not necessarily based on the record

         14  but it might have been based on other issues.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Mr. Chair, I am

         16  not cutting you off because it is not good

         17  suggestions, and they really are, my only issue is

         18  that as good or as bad as the BSA is, I think that

         19  either way what the issue really is not, I know that

         20  you do great community outreach, Mr. Morsellino, I

         21  mean, I am a first hand experience in that, but

         22  communities do not want to feel as if they are at

         23  the mercy of people that choose to do the outreach,

         24  or choose to go to their communities beforehand.

         25  And also at the BSA, they feel like it is hit or
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          2  miss sometimes.

          3                 I guess what I was just trying to get

          4  at is if there are any specific recommendations that

          5  you, who practice in this territory night and day,

          6  had just tried to solve that issue.  But, if not,

          7  that is fine, I just thought maybe, this is the time

          8  to give us recommendations, and I think that is a

          9  good thing.

         10                 MR. LOBEL:  You are 100 percent

         11  right.  I do not know, I did not come here with an

         12  answer to that question but just as a conceptual

         13  issue, one of the problems is when you are dealing

         14  with the City Planning Commission, the community

         15  board, there is ongoing dialog.  The BSA, because of

         16  the nature of its proceedings, its quasi- judicial

         17  function, it is much more close.  I mean, there is

         18  not ongoing dialog with the community boards or with

         19  the applicants for that matter.  It is an ongoing

         20  hearing process, and that is the thing about it to

         21  be honest, if I could answer your question.  I do

         22  not know the answer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I am not asking

         24  just for right now, I am saying, as we move forward

         25  in this process, it might be helpful as you are
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          2  practicing in that realm that you give us some

          3  ideas, and also Mr. Chair, I am assuming that when

          4  the community comes up as well, hopefully you guys

          5  will leave one or two people here amongst yourselves

          6  just to sort of get the ideas that the community has

          7  because I am sure they will have some as they

          8  present their testimony as well.

          9                 I appreciate you being here today.

         10                 MR. MORSELLINO:  Two suggestions I

         11  would make, and one is what I mentioned before.  I

         12  think 7221 needs an overhaul. I do not see this

         13  emphasis on A and B findings.  The financials are

         14  really not as important as the character of the

         15  area.  And, I think they community does relate to

         16  that.

         17                 And, I think more communities should

         18  have more professionals, engineers and architects on

         19  their land use committees.  I find that when they

         20  do, then a lot of questions get answered internally,

         21  where they may look at us as the adversaries, they

         22  look to their own people for advise on certain

         23  questions.  So, I think it is important to get more

         24  professionals in the field of engineering and

         25  architecture on the various community boards.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Before I call on

          3  the next council member for a question, I just want

          4  to say we have also been joined by Council Member

          5  John Liu.

          6                 Just an announcement, the sub-

          7  committee on Landmarks, Public Siting, and Maritime

          8  Uses, which was supposed to start at 11, has been

          9  moved to 250 Broadway, on the 14th Floor. So, if you

         10  here for that, you are in the wrong spot.

         11                 Council Member Mike McMahon.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.

         14                 I just want to pick up a little bit

         15  on what Council Member Katz was asking in terms of

         16  specific recommendations that you have.

         17                 Originally your answers were about

         18  community outreach and of the applicant doing a

         19  better job of communicating with the community but

         20  it really was not answering the question.

         21                 I guess what I would like to do is

         22  present to you what I see as the problem, and then

         23  maybe you can help us find solutions to the problem.

         24  And, the problem is this, in the case of most zoning

         25  variances, and I sat on a community board and was
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          2  chairman of a land use committee, of a community

          3  board, and what would happen was we would on the

          4  community board consider the application, applying

          5  the five criteria as best we could, and coming up

          6  with a vote and a recommendation, and in most cases

          7  that vote or recommendation would be approved by the

          8  full committee. The matter would also be considered

          9  by the Borough President, and the matter would then

         10  go to BSA and invariably BSA would do totally

         11  opposite as to what the community was recommending,

         12  and what the community thought was appropriate.

         13  Quite often the BSA would respond to the communities

         14  position by putting on certain conditions, which

         15  were never followed up with and were never enforced,

         16  and then the variances would be invariably renewed

         17  in five or ten years, and it was as if a zoning

         18  chance was implemented, and a zoning change, of

         19  course, would go to City Planning, and would

         20  ultimately end up on our desk.

         21                 So, it seems to me, that the result

         22  is the same through the BSA process as it is through

         23  a zoning change.  The input from the community board

         24  and the Borough President and the local council

         25  members, by letter or by voicing their votes, is
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          2  more often than not, not considered.  So, you have

          3  this two- tiered, or this two- track system, is

          4  probably the best way to look at it, where the

          5  result can be totally different, depending on what

          6  track you choose.

          7                 So, having said that, I again ask you

          8  gentlemen for concrete recommendations as to how to

          9  make the process better, and also for Council, from

         10  a legal perspective, how is it or do you see a

         11  difference in the results, looking at it on a

         12  results orientated approach, to the two processes,

         13  and why is it then that you would be opposed to us

         14  wanting to be at the end of both processes?

         15                 MR. LOBEL:  Well, I would begin by

         16  disagreeing with your premise.  I actually think the

         17  Board actually listens to community boards, and I

         18  have had many cases, and I think you will hear that

         19  from other representatives.  It is the unusual case

         20  where you do not get into, where the Board does not

         21  express the concerns of the community board, so, I

         22  actually do not agree with your premise, with all

         23  due respect.

         24                 In terms of your second point, I

         25  think the simple point is that the zoning and
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          2  variances are two sides of the same coin.  The

          3  zoning is looking at the broader plan, compliance of

          4  plan, land use for the City but you need this relief

          5  valve.  And, for the reasons expressed in our

          6  statement, we do not believe it is appropriate for

          7  the Council to be overseeing that position.  Now, I

          8  just tried to keep my answers short but we can

          9  debate it in more detail.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  No, and I

         11  look forward to that debate but would you then

         12  concede that in matters, if the application for a

         13  variance seeks, in effect, to change the zoning as

         14  prescribed by the existing zoning to some other

         15  zoning, would you say, "well, in that case certainly

         16  that would belong into that area over which we have

         17  a purview now"?

         18                 MR. LOBEL:  No, I would, rather or

         19  not to change the use of the bulk of the building,

         20  the variance process is performing the same

         21  function, which is allowing the property owner to

         22  get some return from their property, where zoning

         23  otherwise would not allow it, and that is a

         24  constitutionally mandated safety valve that was put

         25  in it in 1916, when zoning was adopted, and it has
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          2  been here ever since.

          3                 So, I do not actually see any

          4  difference between

          5  the two.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Do you see a

          7  difference between the change in zoning and a

          8  variance application, or, in your opinion should the

          9  Council not have the`end power' over zoning changes

         10  as well?

         11                 MR. LOBEL:  No, no, I certainly have

         12  no issue about the Council having the power in the

         13  zoning but, as we said in our statement, these

         14  variances are very different function in zoning,

         15  where you are looking at a much more broader

         16  perspective on zoning. The variances are very site

         17  specific, and the requirements of the zoning

         18  resolution are very site specific, very specific and

         19  legally specific, and those we do not believe are

         20  sullying to the City Council as a legislative body

         21  is in a position to review.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Yes but,

         23  this City Council has Land Use powers in the case of

         24  the zoning application, and could be for a very site

         25  specific zoning change, I mean, I do not think that
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          2  the argument that we are a solely a legislative body

          3  holds water, if you concede that we have land use

          4  powers as exists now.  I mean, certainly, we have

          5  quasi- judicial powers in the area of land use

          6  already.  We act in that function now.  This is not

          7  some new- braking ground that we are stepping onto

          8  by saying that we want to exercise the same final

          9  vote in a matter that can clearly, the two

         10  processes, the end results are so similar in my mind

         11  that to argue that we are now becoming a quasi-

         12  judicial body, I do not see it, when we have that

         13  power in this and other areas already.

         14                 MR. MORSELLINO:  You definitely have

         15  the power in the zoning and land use.

         16                 As I said earlier, that is a

         17  different, your review of the considerations are

         18  very different.  You are making judgements about the

         19  general welfare of the City, much broader issues.

         20  That is not what the variance entails, and with all

         21  due respect, I do see it very differently than you

         22  do.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, you

         24  know, if someone asks for a zoning change to City

         25  Planning, it can be for one single building lot,
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          2  that comes to us as well.

          3                 MR. LOBEL:  No, I cannot not --

          4                 MR. MORSELLINO:  Councilman, that

          5  should not be because that is what we know as`spot

          6  zoning', so City Planning Commission and you should

          7  not be approving site specific zoning changes.  That

          8  is what is called`spot zoning', which is illegal.  The

          9  Board of Standards and Appeals does site specific

         10  variances, and I think that is what the difference

         11  is that variances are more site specific because of

         12  a particular kind of hardship.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But we do

         14  site specific, we just had a hearing about sidewalk

         15  cafes.  Individual applicants come to us for site

         16  specific determinations, so we issue permits, we do

         17  all that stuff already.

         18                 I mean, you are now just saying all

         19  of a sudden we cannot do this on these applications.

         20    I mean, the legal underpinnings of your argument,

         21  I do not know if they are soft or I just do not

         22  understand our power.

         23                 MR. LOBEL:  But, I think, and it is

         24  after the City Planning approves the, well, the City

         25  Planning approves the sidewalk cafe regulations, and
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          2  then they approve a particular sidewalk cafe.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  They come to

          4  us as well.

          5                 MR. LOBEL:  Probably by special

          6  permit, I guess that is by special permit.

          7                 MR. MORSELLINO:  No, it is not.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And, not to

          9  mix apples and oranges but I am talking about the

         10  process.  We do have those powers, so why we do not

         11  have it in this case is lost on me especially

         12  when--.

         13                 MR. LOBEL:  The approval of--.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Especially

         15  when I know that these elements that we talk about,

         16  and this process that we have had before, quite

         17  often is not regarded by BSA.  And, I disagree, I do

         18  not want to keep all the time here, but we certainly

         19  have different experiences in the process.  But, I

         20  will say this, I do not think that I am alone, that

         21  there are many people who work very hard on

         22  community boards, and I am sure there are Borough

         23  Presidents and Council Members who think that their

         24  voices are not heard in the BSA process, and can

         25  look at the five criteria, and can look at the
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          2  application, and reach a different conclusion, and

          3  certainly by having the Council look at the end road

          4  is one suggestion.

          5                 I would urge you perhaps to give us

          6  other suggestions more concrete than what we have

          7  heard today about fixing the process if it is broken

          8  because that is what I am hearing from you but I am

          9  not hearing specific recommendations.

         10                 MR. LOBEL:  May I just respond to a

         11  couple of points that you made?

         12                 First of all, the sidewalk cafe is a

         13  special permit, It is not a rezoning, so you are

         14  making filings pursuant to an existing legislation.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, that is

         16  not a normally categorized, legislative function as

         17  was brought out in the testimony, that we are all of

         18  a sudden now a legislative body becoming quasi-

         19  judicial.  We do that already, as part of what the

         20  City Council does.

         21                 MR. LOBEL:  I do not believe you

         22  would view the actual sidewalk cafe applications.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  We do.

         24                 MR. LOBEL:  Under the small sidewalk

         25  cafe?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Every one,

          3  we do this

          4  all --

          5                 MR. LOBEL:  But, there is a zoning

          6  framework put in place, you approve the overall

          7  zoning framework.  So, it is being done in a

          8  context.  The City Council and the City Planning

          9  Commission has established a context.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I do not

         11  want to belabor the point but I know that I have

         12  been here for two and a half years, and I voted on

         13  about 75 individual applications.

         14                 MR. LOBEL:  I stand corrected on that

         15  but if I could make another point.

         16                 MR. MORSELLINO:  If I may just finish

         17  what I was saying.

         18                 MR. LOBEL:  I am sorry Joe.

         19                 MR. MORSELLINO:  I understand that

         20  you do the individual sidewalk applications but that

         21  is different from passing upon a body that is

         22  supposed to be acting independently from the

         23  legislative body.  The Board of Standards and

         24  Appeals is a special body that is the safety plug

         25  for the zoning resolution.
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          2                 You also made a mention that the City

          3  Council could substitute a different opinion then

          4  the Board of Standards and Appeals but, case law

          5  says that you are not supposed to substitute a

          6  different opinion from that of the expert Board of

          7  Standards and Appeals, that your only finding could

          8  be, and there is an appeal process that presently

          9  exists, you can appeal to the Supreme Court but the

         10  only finding that is legal is to find that there was

         11  not evidence supporting the Board of Standards and

         12  Appeals position.

         13                 The other point that I want to make

         14  is that you said that you cannot enforce the

         15  conditions of the Board.  That is not true.

         16  Constantly the Board is bringing people to task who

         17  are not abiding by the terms and conditions of the

         18  resolution, and they have a process of rescindment

         19  where they can rescind the variance, and they give

         20  someone, usually, a chance to correct the situation

         21  but they will take a variance away and they have

         22  done that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, on your

         24  point regarding the relationship between this Body

         25  and BSA, we do that with the City Planning
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          2  Commission, which is an executive appointed body but

          3  sits as independent commissioners, and they have

          4  findings. We overturn them.  How would it be any

          5  different if we overturned BSA?

          6                 MR. MORSELLINO:  Because by case law,

          7  the Board of Standards and Appeals must be

          8  independent from the legislative body.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I would

         10  appreciate if you could provide us with copies of

         11  that case law.  That would be very helpful.

         12                 MR. LOBEL:  We are talking about

         13  taking away people's property rights.  When you are

         14  talking about a sidewalk cafe, that is a special

         15  thing that has been given to people, a special

         16  benefit, to use the City sidewalk.  This is a

         17  persons property.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  When you

         19  come in for a variance, what you are saying is, "I

         20  have property that is zoned in a special way, but I

         21  do not want it to be that way anymore", because you

         22  could develop that property pursuant to the zoning

         23  that existed at that time, so I do not find much

         24  weight to that argument.  When you want a variance,

         25  it is clear that you are saying, "I am not happy
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          2  with the zoning that I have", so, I do not think

          3  that argument holds weight.  If we change the zoning

          4  in the middle of ownership, maybe you could have an

          5  argument then, but to deny or approve a variance

          6  application does not take away someone's property

          7  rights.

          8                 MS. LOBEL:  Councilman, then what you

          9  are saying is that we should do away with the

         10  variances because anyone, that is why the

         11  legislature, the City Planning Commission, set forth

         12  the guidelines, and the courts have clearly set

         13  forth the guidelines. People have to have a safety

         14  valve because--.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I am sorry

         16  to interrupt because I really have to, I apologize

         17  Councilman.  But, that is not an automatic right,

         18  that you get every variance.  You have to prove it

         19  just like you would for the special permit for the

         20  sidewalk cafe.  It is not an automatic right, and

         21  when you said that we are taking away the rights of

         22  property owners, that is nonsense.  That is absolute

         23  nonsense.

         24                 MR. LOBEL:  In 1916, when they

         25  established zoning Councilman, it was a
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          2  revolutionary idea, and the Supreme Court upheld

          3  zoning, only, only in Euclid versus Ambler

          4  (phonetic), only if there was established in each

          5  municipality a Board of Appeals to relieve the

          6  pressure of zoning.  And, we do not go in and say,

          7   "I do not like the zoning, I want to change it, I

          8  need a variance." We go in and our clients have to

          9  spend thousands of dollars, aside from our fees,

         10  architects, financial analysts, filing fees,

         11  photographs, $25,000, $30,000, for a small business,

         12  a small business in the Bronx, I do not know if

         13  there is a Bronx councilman here, your council

         14  member supported an application, Mr. Dave Elvin

         15  (phonetic), who opened up his business 30 years ago,

         16  and now the City gave him a violation, and he has to

         17  stay in business and to keep his 25 people working.

         18  To keep his 25 people working, to pay the City taxes

         19  and all the other stuff, he has to go for a

         20  variance.  That is what the Board of Standards and

         21  Appeals, let us tell you about all the cases that

         22  some people have been complaining, the other cases,

         23  where people want to stay in business, maybe want to

         24  enlarge a business, and they have no ability to do

         25  it.
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          2                 Where people want to enlarge their

          3  house, they want to enlarge their house because they

          4  have a bigger family.  A lot of permits granted in

          5  the Midwood-Flapper (phonetic) Section of Brooklyn,

          6  property values have gone up tremendously.  People

          7  needed large homes, and I must say synagogues and

          8  churches needing to get a variance, and I know some

          9  people oppose that.

         10                 Congress and the President passed a

         11  law that said we are going to be able to bypass

         12  zoning but, and I represent a number of synagogues

         13  who had to enlarge, they had bigger congregations,

         14  bigger churches, that is what zoning is.  Not

         15  because we say we do not like the zoning, we like

         16  the zoning.  We think zoning is important to make

         17  this a livable city but we also say, when we have a

         18  particular problem, we need it to be decided by an

         19  independent body, not subject to political pressure.

         20    And, the courts have said the fact that 100 people

         21  say they do not like it, and one person says he does

         22  like it, that is not a reason to overturn the

         23  variance.

         24                 You do not weigh this, as you

         25  legislators know, the fact that your constituents,
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          2  if you feel on a particular subject that it is the

          3  right thing to do, I would hope you do it.  Not for

          4  the political reason, but because you thing it is

          5  right.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. MORSELLINO:  The position that

          8  you have expressed, I think would be valid if the

          9  zoning resolution were a perfect document.  But, it

         10  is not.  It is a document that is constantly

         11  evolving, it is a document that is constantly

         12  changing. And, there are instances where the zoning

         13  does not fit the area. There are instances where

         14  single properties may be between large rise

         15  apartment houses, and they have no recourse except

         16  to go to the Board.

         17            COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  No one is saying

         18  that there should not be a variance process but you

         19  know, Mr. Sobel (sic), just as you can passionately

         20  articulate the perspective of someone who maybe

         21  should have been granted a variance, what about all

         22  the people who have bought their homes and lived in

         23  their homes all of their lives next to a piece of

         24  property, and they have a reasonable expectation as

         25  to what that property next to them will be used for
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          2  because there is zoning there.

          3                 And, all of a sudden, they find out

          4  that a variance is granted and now they have a

          5  transfer station next to their house, or they have

          6  some sort of other obnoxious use.  Yet, they have

          7  their livelihood, all their money invested in their

          8  property, and now there is a change.  What about

          9  their rights?  Don't they have the same equal rights

         10  that all the people that you spoke so passionately

         11  about had?

         12                 So, the question here is not each

         13  individual case, the question here is what is the

         14  best process to make sure that the cases are

         15  adjudicated?

         16                 What we have found in our experience,

         17  is that there is a great dissatisfaction out there

         18  with the BSA process, and we question here and

         19  wonder if it is not better to have the Council have

         20  the final say on these matters, as we have on zoning

         21  changes now.

         22                 Sitting in a quasi- judicial role,

         23  sitting in a role to decide, we think as elected

         24  officials answerable to the people, what maybe is

         25  the best decision to make and trying every day to do
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          2  the right thing, whether it is politically expedient

          3  or not.  But, we believe that all those people's

          4  rights are just as important as those who you spoke

          5  for, and the question is, what is the best way to

          6  get that done?

          7                 And, if you have all said, I think

          8  three out of four of you have said, "Yes, there are

          9  problems with the BSA process, and it should be

         10  fixed but you have not really said any concrete

         11  suggestive way to correct that, and maybe that is

         12  the discussion that we should have.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Not to belabor

         15  the point but I could not agree more with my

         16  colleague, Councilman McMahon.               Getting

         17  a variance is not an automatic right.  It should be

         18  a rare thing, it has now become commonplace.  It is

         19  interesting that I thought you guys would have come

         20  up with better arguments against the legislation.  I

         21  find nothing that you have really said here,

         22  certainly dissuades me, as the author of the bill,

         23  and I can also say that the argument that affordable

         24  housing is somehow going to be affected by giving

         25  the City Council oversight over BSA, I think is
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          2  another argument that has absolutely, I am not

          3  asking you for a comment because I am going to

          4  disagree with you no matter what you say at this

          5  point.

          6                 I am just fascinated that we sit in a

          7  situation where we have an independent agency that

          8  time and time again violates its own findings.  They

          9  do not pay attention to their own findings, and what

         10  recourse do the community boards, elected officials,

         11  and residents have is then to privately sue?  And, I

         12  do not think that is a fair process for government.

         13                 Thank You.

         14                 MR. LOBEL:  Thank you.  I may be one

         15  of the few people who lived through the Board of

         16  Estimate review, and it was not a system that I

         17  think anyone found, and that is why the City Council

         18  did not want to take it when the Board of Estimate

         19  was put out of business.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Well, I do not

         21  know if you can make that assumption, that the City

         22  Council did not want to take it, it was not put in

         23  the Charter revision at the time.  However, I think

         24  this Council has done an excellent job since it has

         25  had land use powers, as Council Member McMahon said.
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          2    And, by your argument your are, in effect,

          3  inferring that we are not going to do the job if we

          4  got BSA, and I think that is wrong.  I think that is

          5  really wrong.

          6                 MR. MORSELLINO:  I am a lawyer, and I

          7  like to live by legal principles and I think that it

          8  is wrong for a legislative body to interfere with an

          9  independent quasi- judicial body.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  We disagree.

         11  Based upon your arguments, we disagree.

         12                 The next panel is Carlos Vargas from

         13  Community Board 10, Simeon Bankroft from the

         14  Historic District Council, and I know Mandingo

         15  Tshaka is here from the Bayside Clear-Spring

         16  Council, who has to leave, and Wilma Maynard from

         17  Community Board 3.

         18                 MR. VARGAS:  Mr. Chairman, good

         19  morning.  We have a joint testimony from Community

         20  Board 10, if Miss Beverly Smith can also come up.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Sure, okay,

         22  because I think Simeon has left to go to Landmarks

         23  too.

         24                 Would that be Beverly Smith?

         25                 MR. VARGAS:  Beverly Smith, yes,
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          2  correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I am missing

          4  somebody, who am I missing?  Well, we will figure

          5  that out.

          6                 Mandingo, I know you have to leave,

          7  so why don't you go first?

          8                 MR. TSHAKA:  Good morning, Councilman

          9  Avella.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.

         11                 MR. TSHAKA:  I am honored to be here.

         12                 I was listening to these gentlemen

         13  speak that just left.  I can tell you that the Board

         14  of Standards and Appeals, I have at least 26 years

         15  of going to the Board of Standards and Appeals, I

         16  live in Bayside, and the Board of Standards and

         17  Appeals has dumped the worst uses on the southside

         18  of Northern Boulevard, starting at 204th Street, all

         19  in violation of what the zoning resolution says.

         20  They have put two gas stations adjacent to one

         21  another, and contiguous to the residential

         22  community.

         23                 Who lives there?  African- Americans.

         24    What is any more lethal and toxic?  One gas

         25  station is bad enough, you know what I am talking

                                                            84

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  about; Exxon and Getty, they are under variances.

          3  You cross the Clearview Expressway on the southside,

          4  where a Nissan dealership is currently, at city

          5  block 7305, there was three auto body shops

          6  operating in one block.

          7                 The Board of Standards and Appeals

          8  application 6565, they approved Don and Joe's Body

          9  Shop to come back towards 45th Road, and it was this

         10  far, my hand is touching the building of the body

         11  shop, and my shoulder is the house.  The put the

         12  body shop in the house.

         13                 The Board of Standards and Appeals,

         14  he talked

         15  about 7221, they need to keep A and B of 7221.  It

         16  says that the Board must make each and everyone of

         17  the required findings of 7221 to five findings.  It

         18  should be plural, "Boards", so that the community

         19  boards base their decisions upon 7221.

         20                 I have, as you know, most variances,

         21  most properties in the City of New York and

         22  rectangular and square.  Within city block 7305,

         23  they have approved variance after variance when none

         24  of them meet the requirements for the approval of a

         25  variance according to 1961 zoning resolution.  The
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          2  properties are flat and rectangular.

          3                 As I say, they have put body shops in

          4  there, open parking lots, everything that the

          5  Community Board has said, I mean the Community Board

          6  is just as bad, yes, the Community Board. Everything

          7  that the zoning resolution says is incompatible with

          8  residential users.  The City has dumped on us via

          9  the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         10                 It is imperative that there be, that

         11  the City Council have the same powers as the Board

         12  of Estimate, that it may review the decisions of the

         13  BSA, and uphold or overturn their decision.

         14                 We do not mind a person applying for

         15  a variance but the Board of Standards and Appeals

         16  must base their decisions upon 7221.  They just cast

         17  it out.

         18                 I thank you.

         19                 MS. SMITH:  Thank you, Chairman

         20  Avella, members of the sub- committee, good morning.

         21                 My name is Beverly Smith, and I am

         22  the Chair of Manhattan Community Board 10's

         23  Committee on Housing, and I am here today to speak

         24  in support of Intro. 170, which will grant the New

         25  York City Council the power to call up and review
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          2  decisions of the Board of Standards and Appeals.

          3                 On Tuesday, April 13th the

          4  Committee's on Land Use and Housing voted in favor

          5  of a resolution supporting Intro. 170. We feel that

          6  the proposed city law strikes an appropriate balance

          7  between the need to maintain the integrity of the

          8  professional judgement of the Board, and the need

          9  for institutional oversight of a body appointed by

         10  the Executive, our Mayor.

         11                 This balance rests on the fact that

         12  BSA decisions are not subject to automatic review by

         13  the City Council, but rather, it requires the City

         14  Council's affirmative action.

         15                 Moreover, the Council's review of BSA

         16  decisions is limited to determining whether the

         17  evidence provided by the Board of Standards and

         18  Appeal is sufficient to support its decision.  It is

         19  at this level of Council action and review, that

         20  this proposed law is most relevant and sorely

         21  needed.  Our experience in Harlem has shown us that

         22  the ability of Community Boards to evaluate evidence

         23  furnished by an applicant requesting a variance, or

         24  a special permit from the Board of Standards and

         25  Appeals, is often compromised by the highly
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          2  technical nature of the subject under review.

          3                 Applicants often charge into

          4  community board meetings and hearing with an army of

          5  legal, financial, design, and construction

          6  professionals who, while ethically and legally are

          7  bound to operate within the strictures of the law,

          8  and applicable regulations, are nevertheless

          9  representing the interest of their paying clients.

         10                 Therefore, the information provided

         11  by the applicants and their professional

         12  facilitators is consistently tailored to further the

         13  applicants claim, and is seldom, if ever, less than

         14  one- sided.

         15                 Community boards must then rely on

         16  their own professional expertise and experience to

         17  judge the veracity, accuracy and appropriateness of

         18  the applicants claims, and proposed solutions for

         19  their clients.

         20                 Reliance on outside experts and

         21  consultants, whether pro bono or university- based

         22  is at times compromised by lack of availability or

         23  even by potential conflict of interest within past

         24  or current clients.

         25                 Even with these practical
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          2  constraints, community boards fulfill their review

          3  duties admirably but it also comes at a toll to

          4  individual board members.  While applicants rely on

          5  these very highly paid professionals, who's

          6  livelihood it is to present their clients cases

          7  before the Board of Standards and Appeals, community

          8  board members must take time off from their own

          9  jobs, and physically test the fire before the Board

         10  of Standards and Appeals, if they want community

         11  board decisions effectively represented.

         12                 City Council review of Board of

         13  Standards and Appeals decisions may supplement or

         14  compliment community board review and provide a

         15  bulwark against the consistent gutting of the zoning

         16  resolution and general planning principles.

         17                 This concludes our testimony, thank

         18  you.

         19                 MR. VARGAS:  Mr. Chairman, I just

         20  wanted to add in relation to Mr. Morsellino's

         21  comments about eliminating perhaps finding A and B,

         22  the issuances of the variances is not just about

         23  context, it is about context, yes, but it is also

         24  about financial, and it is about providing the

         25  minimum to provide relief.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Announce

          3  your name please.

          4                 MR. VARGAS:  My name is Carlos

          5  Vargas, Community Board 10 as well.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.

          7                 Next panel, I am going to, since

          8  there are only two more speakers left in opposition,

          9  I will do a couple of speakers, couple of panels in

         10  favor since they greatly outweigh the opposition.

         11                 Let us do Bob Nobile from the Little

         12  Neck Pines Association, David Gruber from the South

         13  Village Landmark Association, Carole DeSaram from

         14  the Tribeca City Association, and Leah Archibald

         15  from the Southwest Brooklyn Industrial Development

         16  Corporation.

         17                 And, I would mention that Andrew

         18  Berman who was representing the Greenwich Village

         19  Society for Historic Preservation had to leave, and

         20  he left a letter of support to be put into the

         21  record.

         22                 MS. THOMAS:  My name is Phaedra

         23  Thomas, I am representing Leah Archibald and the

         24  Southwest Brooklyn Industrial Development

         25  Corporation.
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          2                 We are a non- profit, economic

          3  development corporation representing the businesses

          4  of Sunset Park, Red Hook and Gowanus.  There are

          5  over 2,500 of those businesses representing over

          6  40,000 jobs for New Yorkers.  We do business

          7  services and employment services.

          8                 I am going to speak to you today

          9  about my experience as the administrator of the Red

         10  Hook, Gowanus Chamber of Commerce, which is a

         11  business member association of over 80 business

         12  members from the Red Hook and Gowanus areas.  I

         13  oversaw and was representing that business community

         14  in the 160 Inway Street variance application in Red

         15  Hook.

         16                 To give you context, the Red Hook

         17  community, unlike other areas in New York City, has

         18  experienced a huge growth in the number of

         19  businesses, over 60 percent since 1991.  So, there

         20  is a huge blue- collar community of businesses that

         21  depend on the manufacturing zone space that is

         22  available in Red Hook.  There is also waterfront

         23  views of New York City, so a lot of people would

         24  like to put housing there, which is why 160 Inway

         25  Street came to be.
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          2                 During the year and a half long

          3  process of hearings of this application, we

          4  collected evidence and presented it to the BSA about

          5  other buildings in the area, other tall, old

          6  structures that were used for industrial purposes.

          7  The community board overwhelmingly voted against the

          8  proposal.  We collected 500 resident petition

          9  signatures, over 25 different letters from

         10  businesses representing 2,500 jobs.

         11                 In short, we had the community's

         12  support, we had the resident and business

         13  community's support, and we presented evidence that

         14  this would change the essential character of the

         15  neighborhood, that there were other buildings that

         16  were the same structure that afforded these uses

         17  that had a reasonable rate of return, and a year and

         18  a half worth of comments from the Commissioner's,

         19  like if we approve this application it will be the

         20  beginning of a domino effect for businesses in the

         21  Red Hook area, and the applicants were asked to

         22  produce evidence that they marketed the building,

         23  which they never produced, and we were hoping that

         24  because of these comments from the Commissioner's,

         25  that questioned the viability of the applicants case
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          2  that we would get subsomething in our favor, and we

          3  did not.  The Chair of the BSA, at the time, voted

          4  against the proposal, which basically left the

          5  decision of our community in the hands of three

          6  individuals because there were only four present

          7  that day.

          8                 As you know, our only appeals process

          9  is to file an Article 78.  The Red Hook- Gowanus

         10  Chamber of Commerce and the business members have

         11  reached into their pockets and individual businesses

         12  have retained a lawyer, and our first hearing is on

         13  April 30th.  This is business members that are

         14  going, we have no appeal, and so, the community, the

         15  businesses and the residents of the community is

         16  going to be changed forever, and we need this bill.

         17                 Thank you for sponsoring it.

         18                 MS. DESARAM:  Thank you, my name is

         19  Carole DeSaram, I am President of the Tribeca

         20  Community Association.

         21                 We had a letter published several

         22  years ago in Cranes Business, saying that we support

         23  development as long as it is responsible

         24  development.

         25                 We fought a ten year battle to stop a
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          2  39- story hotel in an area where we only have four-

          3  story, six- story buildings, and we are a mixed- use

          4  manufacturing area.  We finally were successful in

          5  getting it reduced to a 12- story residential

          6  building but that was after ten years and close to

          7  $100,000 that we had to assess ourselves.  I had to

          8  take off from work for two years, and become an in-

          9  house attorney practically.  We had to bring a

         10  former Commissioner of Transportation, Sam Schwartz

         11  (phonetic), Robert Silman (phonetic) who has

         12  repaired the Rotunda in Washington, this is expert

         13  testimony, and still the BSA choose to ignore the

         14  facts of the five findings.

         15                 Other neighborhoods in the City can

         16  not afford this. Also, our Community Board 1 is a

         17  board comprised of developers, they unanimously,

         18  together, voted down 408 Greenwich Street, and we

         19  submitted this to the BSA, which they choose to

         20  ignore.  They also allowed the 408 developer to

         21  submit testimony that he was going to have four

         22  residential units, two of which he was going to

         23  sell. Thirty days later the New York Times now

         24  reports they are going to rent them, obviously, the

         25  BSA did not even look at the sample and map.  I have
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          2  before you, the little area that they were supposed

          3  to be reviewing, the historic district section.  If

          4  they can not even be trusted to look at the Sanborn

          5  (phonetic) map on irregular lots, we also brought

          6  the former City engineer, the chief engineer of

          7  Water and Sewers, to the BSA last month, and they

          8  ignored his testimony, and they refused to even

          9  respond to his testimony.

         10                 So, how can, with Sheldon Lobel here,

         11  and others, say that the BSA can be trusted, when we

         12  bring what is known as national expert witnesses up?

         13                 So, the other very important thing

         14  that was not addressed, which I heard last Friday,

         15  the City now has a forty percent immigrant

         16  population which is growing.  They, for the most

         17  part, work in the service industry.  They work in

         18  small manufacturing areas.  They work in the food

         19  processing areas.  I had to sit at the BSA last

         20  month and listen to the testimony of the small food

         21  businesses in Greenpoint and Red Hook, and ask and

         22  plead with the Board of Standards and Appeals not to

         23  allow these variances, which are going to push out

         24  the small, entrepreneurial businesses that hire

         25  what, we call in the City, the unemployed or the
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          2  borderline, or our immigrant population.

          3                 If the BSA continues, they are

          4  destroying the neighborhood fabrics.  Our city

          5  council members represent these small areas of the

          6  City.

          7                 The City is known as these little,

          8  small sections of the City that represent the

          9  people, and if they destroy, as the BSA is doing

         10  quite rapidly now, they are pushing through

         11  variances now with less than three hearings and it

         12  is like a candy store there. You step up to the

         13  plate, you get it, and what is going to happen then,

         14  our own city council members will probably not even

         15  have some of the districts to represent anymore if

         16  this continues the way it is going and, we really

         17  feel this is a step in the right direction, and we

         18  thank you for taking the step forward.

         19                 MR. GRUBER:  Hello, I am David

         20  Gruber.  I am President of the South Village

         21  Landmark Association, and I am also a public member

         22  of Community Board 2 on the zoning committee, and

         23  what makes me maybe an interesting candidate to

         24  speak before you, is, I am also a real estate

         25  developer.
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          2                 So, let me just first say thank you,

          3  Councilman Avella, and the others, and Councilwoman

          4  Quinn, and the others who have sponsored this very

          5  important piece of legislation.

          6                 I think you are right in saying that

          7  we are not here to say that variances are not

          8  important, or that the BSA is not important, and

          9  they certainly are.  The BSA is a very important

         10  agency to have but what they have done is, they

         11  really have changed the face of many neighborhoods

         12  and have done it without any kind of planning for

         13  schools, open space, infrastructure, and they have

         14  done this in response to the real estate industry

         15  who is demanding that certain districts be changed

         16  or bulk requirements be changed. And what happens is

         17  they have become the primary port of entry in the

         18  real estate industry for changes, and bypassing the

         19  Planning Commissioner entirely, which is actually

         20  charged and mandated by the City Council to consider

         21  planning, and changes in the zoning, and changes to

         22  the zoning map, they have bypassed that, and I know

         23  to the chagrin of the City Planning Commission.

         24                 The BSA has actually morphed in to a

         25  very much a politically influenced organization,
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          2  witnessed by the City Councilwoman's comments that

          3  this Board is easier than the prior Board to work

          4  with.  What does that mean?  That the next Board

          5  might be more difficult than this Board?  It really

          6  is, this Board has, started to reflect the vision of

          7  the Executive Branch of the government, and it is

          8  not actually acting as an independent body, although

          9  on the books, it looks like it is an independent

         10  body, and we can see this.  Probably this Board is a

         11  little easier than the prior Administration but we

         12  should not have that situation.

         13                 From what I am seeing is that the

         14  City Council is requesting the ability to look at

         15  the sufficiency of the findings that the Board of

         16  Standards and Appeals is ruling on.

         17                 We have situations where the Board

         18  has found the hardship because a plot of land is not

         19  perfectly square, or that the substandard conditions

         20  have existed for literally hundreds of years and

         21  entire swaths of neighborhoods, and have been built

         22  on. Applicants are coming and saying this is a

         23  hardship, and what the City Council, I believe

         24  legislation is saying, is that they want the ability

         25  to look at the sufficiency of the evidence, not to
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          2  say that we have to abandon the BSA, they are saying

          3  that the City Council does not have the ability to

          4  do that.  And, I question whether the courts, in any

          5  way, have the ability to go through the inflated

          6  numbers that  often are submitted, the economics of

          7  building, the square foot cost, the intricate zoning

          8  questions which actually the City Council has far

          9  more experience than the court system in doing that.

         10                 I just want to end, by the way, in

         11  talking a little bit about the law in 1916 that has

         12  been quoted repeatedly by people.  Actually in 1916,

         13  when the zoning resolution was first established,

         14  the safety valve was there, and I am quoting, "to

         15  provide a safety valve in order that the

         16  restrictions would not impose conversary hardships

         17  on owners of buildings erected prior to the zoning

         18  resolution", in other words, the Board of Standards

         19  and Appeals originally was designed to deal with

         20  non- conforming uses in the face of the new zoning

         21  resolution in 1916.  So, I just want to clear up why

         22  the BSA was established, and I am quoting from that

         23  history.

         24                 I also just want to end by saying the

         25  idea that people who protest BSA decisions because
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          2  of sour grapes, is nothing but arrogant, and there

          3  are several issues that affect our neighborhoods,

          4  affect our community, sour grapes is just not one of

          5  them.

          6                 The BSA has become a mini- state

          7  that, and it is not an independent appeals board.

          8  It is a port of entry, it is not an appeals board.

          9  It has become a mini- state that is run amok, it is

         10  not responsible to any of the elected officials,

         11  that are ultimately responsible to the ultimate

         12  power in this country, the people of New York.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 MR. NOBILE:  Honorable Chairman Tony

         15  Avella, and the members of the Committee, my name is

         16  Bob Nobile.  I am the President of the Little Neck

         17  Pines Civic Association in Northeast Queens.

         18                 My civic association is very active

         19  in New York City zoning reforms.  The citizens of

         20  the City need more control over what is built or

         21  taken down in their neighborhoods.  We also feel

         22  that many New York City agencies need more

         23  accountability to the public.

         24                 I am impressed by the current City

         25  Council and the strides you have made in recent
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          2  years, especially in this Committee.

          3                 The Little Neck Pines Association

          4  support the Introduction Number 170; Council review

          5  pertaining to the Board of Standards and Appeals.

          6                 A City Council review of the BSA will

          7  take the legal burden off the communities.  In the

          8  past, the only way to challenge the BSA decisions,

          9  was through litigation.  This is costly, and the

         10  communities do not have the money for this

         11  challenge.  Landlords and developers, in their quest

         12  for personal gain through variances and permits,

         13  could care less about the neighborhoods they build

         14  in. It is ironic that the citizens have to go to

         15  court to question something being built or renovated

         16  in their community.

         17                 Sometimes the overall picture of the

         18  community is not taken into consideration.  The

         19  decisions of the BSA, most often, change the quality

         20  of life to the people in these areas.  We are all

         21  not perfect, and decisions for permits and variances

         22  sometimes need to be rethought.

         23                 The people of New York City need a

         24  way to question, analyze, and appeal the decisions

         25  of the BSA.  We need a way to protect our
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          2  communities.  This should be done through the City

          3  Council.  The Board of Standards and Appeals should

          4  be regulated and accountable for any, and all, its

          5  decisions to maintain their credibility.

          6                 I would like to thank the City

          7  Council for adding yet another task to their jobs in

          8  taking on a Council review.

          9                 The Little Neck Pines Civic

         10  Association supports this local law change to the

         11  City Charter.

         12                 I thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Next panel will

         14  be a panel in opposition, Janice Callaane (sic), and

         15  by the way the first slip you filled out you said

         16  you were in favor, that is why.

         17                 MS. CALLAANE:  I did not write in

         18  favor.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Okay, Adam

         20  Rothkrug, and Eric --

         21                 MS. CALLAANE:  My name if Janice

         22  CALLAANE, I work for the law office of Sheldon Lobel

         23  and Associates.  We practice primarily in land use,

         24  variances, and special permits and the such before

         25  the Board of Standards and Appeals, and City
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          2  Planning.  I am in the part of the law firm that

          3  primarily deals with the Board of Standards and

          4  Appeals applications.

          5                 I can tell you that the Board of

          6  Standards and Appeals does not give anything away.

          7  It is not a candy store, they are not indifferent to

          8  the community boards.  They grill us continuously on

          9  issues relating to the five findings, and

         10  specifically, the C finding, the character of the

         11  neighborhood, and the community board's

         12  recommendations and opinions, that of the community

         13  board and the neighboring property owners.

         14                 The Board of Standards and Appeals

         15  absolutely gives great deference, very great

         16  deference to people within the community.  They do

         17  not overlook this at all, and they are not giving

         18  anything away.  The require that we provide them

         19  with additional material constantly, traffic studies

         20  and the such, and any kind of concerns that are

         21  expressed by neighboring property owners, they make

         22  us address them.

         23                 In the situations where the

         24  communities disagree with the developer and the

         25  proposed projects, the Board of Standards and
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          2  Appeals does weigh them.  Sometimes, the Board of

          3  Standards and Appeals finds that the communities are

          4  correct, and they do not feel it is proper.  And

          5  when this happens, very often we will withdraw our

          6  applications, and that is why there is such a high

          7  percentage rate of success for the Board of

          8  Standards and Appeals applications.  Because most of

          9  them, almost all of them, are withdrawn before it

         10  gets decided by the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         11  So, when there is something that is quoted of

         12  approximately of a 90 percent success ratio, that is

         13  90 percent of the applications that are kept alive.

         14  The other portions of the applications that would be

         15  denied, are actually withdrawn, and that is why the

         16  successful ratio seems to be very high at the Board

         17  of Standards and Appeals.  It absolutely is not, and

         18  anyone familiar with the Board of Standards and

         19  Appeals process, would know this. And, if you come

         20  to the Board of Standards and Appeals, you will find

         21  the Chair and the members of the Board of Standards

         22  and Appeals being very responsive to the

         23  communities, community board district needs and

         24  requests.

         25                 However, the Board of Standards and
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          2  Appeals does have to remain an independent body, and

          3  the Board of Standards and Appeals in variance

          4  applications should be independent because if this

          5  process is reviewable by City Council, who is also

          6  responsive to the people electing them every few

          7  years, there is going to be repercussions and your

          8  Council is under pressure from your community.

          9                 If your community board and your the

         10  people you represent desire a BSA variance to be

         11  denied, even improperly perhaps Council people will

         12  feel under pressure to go along with them, even if

         13  it is something that they do not agree with.

         14                 What has been said here by some of

         15  the supporters of this proposal has been the

         16  community board is just as bad, well that shows you

         17  sometimes the people from the community, the over

         18  100,000 people from each community district of the

         19  community board, are not always represented by the

         20  community board.  A lot of times you have the

         21  community board opposing something that a vast

         22  majority of the community actually supports, and the

         23  Board of Standards and Appeals hears this, and the

         24  do weigh each of the opinions, that of the community

         25  board, and people from the community, and the five
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          2  findings most importantly.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I have to,

          4  before we get onto the next speaker, I have to

          5  comment.

          6                 You said a couple of things that have

          7  been said before, and I may have responded earlier

          8  but, in effect when you use the argument that we are

          9  going to be pressured by the community, you are in

         10  effect saying we do not do the job now because we do

         11  have oversight over land use, and I take exception

         12  to that, this Committee takes exception to that, and

         13  the entire City Council does.  That is not a valid

         14  argument.  We have that responsibility now, and I

         15  think we do a very good job.

         16                 Now, you also mentioned that this

         17  would, you forget that the Board of Estimate had

         18  this responsibility, and whether or not you like the

         19  Board of Estimate, there is already a precedent for

         20  having elected officials review BSA.  That is all

         21  this does, is put back a review. And in the

         22  legislation, which the opposition seems to be

         23  ignoring, is our oversight is limited to find

         24  reviewing, whether or not they found evidence for

         25  the findings.  That is all it is.
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          2                 MS. CALLAANE: I think it should be

          3  left up to the experts of the Board of Standards and

          4  Appeals that has, that is their full- time job.  I

          5  do not think it should be left to people who do this

          6  part- time because my experience--.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Oh Boy.

          8                 MS. CALLAANE:  My experience, the

          9  City Council does legislation, they do not, I do not

         10  think they have the time and energy to dedicate

         11  towards this type of variance application process.

         12                 Further, I was born and raised in New

         13  York City.  I have never seen such racism as before

         14  the community boards.  I have brought some

         15  applications before community boards, and have been

         16  told, "we do not want these Jews in our

         17  neighborhood, we do not want these foreigners in our

         18  neighborhood", and I am afraid that if you start

         19  taking the community board opinion into

         20  consideration, you have to consider this.  If you

         21  are going to ask the Board of Standards and Appeals

         22  to be responsive directly to every community board

         23  concern, sometimes they are going to deny

         24  applications primarily and based on a persons race

         25  or background or whatever. And this is true, I have
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          2  never seen this before except for at the community

          3  boards, and it is appalling but it does take place.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Just to refresh

          5  my memory, you did start out by saying that you work

          6  for Sheldon Lobel, correct?

          7                 MS. CALLAANE:  I do, but I speak

          8  independently and as a member of New York, as a--.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  How much of

         10  Sheldon Lobel's business is actually before BSA?

         11                 MS. CALLAANE:  Most of it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Okay.

         13                 MS. CALLAANE:  We can certainly go

         14  into bankruptcy if the Board of Standards and

         15  Appeals continues to, or if the City Council starts

         16  denying these applications because many of our

         17  clients are in a situation where if they do not get

         18  their variance they will be in bankruptcy and

         19  foreclosure, which some of our clients are.

         20                 MR. ROTHKRUG:  Good morning, my name

         21  is Adam Rothkrug.  I am a partner with the firm

         22  Rothkrug, Rothkrug, Weinberg, and Spector, a law

         23  firm that includes land use as part of our area of

         24  practice.

         25                 I am here to speak against the City
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          2  Council's proposed charter amendment to assume

          3  appellate jurisdiction from the Board of Standards

          4  and Appeals.

          5                 During its last few years in

          6  existence, I appeared at several hearings of the

          7  Board of Estimate, the last elected body which had

          8  appellate jurisdiction.  The process was a

          9  discouraging one, and that the Board of Estimate

         10  really limited their review to determining whether

         11  there was substantial evidence to support the

         12  determination of the BSA.  All too often, the

         13  process involved little or no testimony, and the

         14  final determination was frequently simply an

         15  adoption of the views expressed by the affected

         16  neighbors or community board.

         17                 Opposition, which rarely addressed

         18  the merits or worthiness of the five findings of a

         19  variance application but was instead based on the

         20  more general, "do we want it or not" test.         One

         21  of the most discouraging parts of those appearances

         22  were that the actual Board of Estimate members

         23  rarely even attended the hearings, and instead,

         24  testimony was given to a room in which their seats

         25  were filled by staff members.
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          2                 Merely reviewing the statistics of

          3  cases granted by the BSA is misleading.  As an

          4  example, our firm routinely rejects over 50 or 60

          5  percent of the inquiries that we receive because we

          6  know that the applications do not meet the strict

          7  standards for a variance.  Other applications are

          8  commenced but not filed or withdrawn, when the Board

          9  indicates that there are deficiencies, or where the

         10  local climate convinces a developer to look

         11  elsewhere. I would say probably, if you looked at

         12  percentages of applications that are granted by the

         13  City Planning Commission, or the Landmarks

         14  Commission, or even this City Council that you would

         15  find similarly high percentages because the process

         16  usually weeds out applications that are not going

         17  anywhere.

         18                 Adoption of the proposed revision

         19  will politicize the development process in a manner

         20  in which the affected City Council person will be in

         21  the unenviable position of having to deal with

         22  residents that oppose a variance, again, frequently

         23  without any document that evidence and the expertise

         24  of an agencies who sole constitutional purpose is to

         25  grant relief from improper confiscatory zoning
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          2  regulations.

          3                 The BSA now requires submission of

          4  detailed environmental and economic analyses, the

          5  commissioners visit sites, they accept testimony

          6  from neighbors, elected officials, community boards,

          7  as well as municipal agencies such as City Planning,

          8  the Fire Department, DEP, and others.

          9                 They frequently require changes to

         10  applications, and they encourage the withdrawal or

         11  not even filing of meritless applications.

         12                 They grant applications that they may

         13  not personally like, or which may be unpopular in

         14  the community because they are aware of their legal

         15  obligation to review the merits and not the

         16  popularity of an application that comes before them.

         17                 Their independence and the

         18  independence of the decision making process is

         19  critical to their ability to make decisions that

         20  strike a balance between the neighborhood concerns

         21  and the legal rights of property owners.

         22                 As an aside, just to wind up, I would

         23  say that in my own personal experience, recently we

         24  had two special permit applications, and of course

         25  the standards for special permits is very different
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          2  than that for a variance, and even one I think that

          3  was in your district, Councilman Avella, in which

          4  the Board denied special permits, one for a medical

          5  office and one for a funeral chapel where there was

          6  active and intense community opposition.  In both

          7  instances, we had to resort to the court system, and

          8  in both cases the courts gave strongly worded

          9  decisions indicating that the Board cannot simply

         10  give into community opposition, and has to guide

         11  their decision making process by the required

         12  findings, be it a special permit or a variance.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I want to make a

         15  quick comment that was made by the previous speaker,

         16  first of all, then I have a question for you.

         17                 In terms of part- time status,

         18  sitting next to me is Chris Collins, and sitting

         19  behind me is Gail Benjamin, head of the Land Use

         20  Division, and it is their full- time job to watch

         21  over the Land Use Division, and I can tell you they

         22  are experts in Land Use. And, I would match their

         23  expertise against anybody in this City of New York.

         24                 Now, Mr. Rothkrug, I would take it

         25  you from your testimony that your feel that the
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          2  applications you present to BSA are qualified, and

          3  should be granted under the findings of BSA?

          4                 MR. ROTHKRUG:  Absolutely.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Then, if you are

          6  presenting good variance applications, what is the

          7  fear in having the City Council look at those?

          8                 If in fact you are saying they would

          9  stand up under a microscope, then why are you afraid

         10  that when we apply the microscope you are going to

         11  somehow come up with a different decision?

         12                 MR. ROTHKRUG:  I am afraid because,

         13  with all due respect and I did live through the

         14  Board of Estimate, and I understand it may be a

         15  different experience if this jurisdiction does go

         16  through but, again, usually the only reason that the

         17  City Council is getting an application is because

         18  the community board or the neighbors have opposed

         19  it, and they are your constituents, and most of the

         20  time the developers are from another neighborhood.

         21                 So, the City Council, as I said, the

         22  council members and especially the affected council

         23  members are going to be put in a position of either

         24  doing the unpopular thing, which is saying to their

         25  community, "well, we understand all your concerns

                                                            113

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  but we have to live by the judicial standards and

          3  case law, and use our discretion in determining

          4  whether the Board of Standards and Appeals had

          5  substantial evidence", or what the Council can say

          6  is, "you know what, we are going to listen to our

          7  constituents and we do not really care what the

          8  Board of Standards and Appeals found, and we are

          9  going to deny it, and you know what, if the

         10  developer wants to spend two or three years going to

         11  court to overturn us, well that is fine."  But, that

         12  really was the experience at the Board of Estimate,

         13  and there were numerous Board of Estimate decisions

         14  that were overturned in the courts, which found that

         15  they did not even look at the record of the Board of

         16  Standards and Appeals, and that the Board of

         17  Standards and Appeals had substantial evidence to

         18  support their findings.  So, that is the fear of

         19  bringing in a body that is responsible or

         20  responsive, and rely's upon voters and constituents

         21  versus an independent Board which, again, sometimes

         22  has to make difficult findings in the face of

         23  opposition in granting applications.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Again, I would

         25  just agree that I think the City Council has done a
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          2  good job since it has had Land Use powers, and I

          3  would also once again say that BSA ignores its own

          4  findings.

          5                 MR. ROTHKRUG:   I just want to say in

          6  response to the City Council's land use powers at

          7  the present time that, to the best of my knowledge,

          8  the majority of site specific applications, special

          9  permits, certifications, authorizations do not

         10  routinely come before the City Council, they are

         11  handled at the City Planning Commission.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Counsel just

         13  advised me of the response even before I had an

         14  opportunity to formulate my own response, that in

         15  fact, we do have that call- up mechanism, and we do

         16  not exercise it all the time because we do agree

         17  with the original recommendations of City Planning,

         18  so we do exercise good judgement, and we do not

         19  call- up everything, and that would be similar for

         20  this legislation, would be call- up.

         21                 MR. ROTHKRUG:  Again, I totally

         22  understand the jurisdiction of the Council, and as I

         23  said, the majority of those, however, do not come

         24  up.  It is a call- up process not an approval.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 MR. PALATNIK:  Good morning, my name

          3  is Eric Palatnik.

          4                 I would like to thank you for having

          5  me, and I think, Councilman Avella you asked a very

          6  good question, what is the fear of allowing the

          7  call- up provision that is before us know.

          8                 Well, my fear is that we would be in

          9  a situation much like we are at this instant moment,

         10  where we started at a proceeding with nine council

         11  members here, we are left with one, we are left with

         12  Counsel, and we are left with staff members.

         13                 These are detailed, specific

         14  applications which need an in depth review.  The

         15  Board of Standards and Appeals has an entire staff

         16  dedicated to it, not one legal counsel.  Mr. Collins

         17  is quite qualified, I have worked with him before

         18  but he cannot handle all of the buildings in the

         19  City of New York.

         20                 Speaking towards my other fear, my

         21  other fear is the chilling effect on land use

         22  review, which the instant proposal will have.  It

         23  will add a costly and time consuming level of

         24  discretionary review which is duplicative and

         25  unnecessary.  It will, without doubt, dissuade a
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          2  disproportionate number of property owners from

          3  seeking relief from outdated or inappropriate zoning

          4  controls affecting properties which contain unique

          5  physical conditions.  Despite the relatively small

          6  number of controversial BSA applications, and

          7  despite what you have heard today, the controversial

          8  ones are small.

          9                 Despite the small number of these

         10  controversial applications, the instant proposal

         11  will adversely effect each applicant regardless of

         12  the nature of their application.  Less wealthy

         13  property owners will not be able to sustain the

         14  increased time review, and the increased

         15  corresponding costs.  It will have a chilling effect

         16  on land use.

         17                 Now, I come before you Council with

         18  seven years of experience in land use in New York

         19  City.  I personally represented at least 100

         20  applicants before the Board of Standards and

         21  Appeals, and that is probably conservative.  I have

         22  witnessed well over 1,000 applications come before

         23  the New York City Board of Standards and Appeals.  I

         24  come to you as an attorney, and as an officer of the

         25  court.  That is my background.
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          2                 The BSA's background is that they are

          3  a quasi judicial agency, that is by statute.  They

          4  have vast experience in matters of land use, and

          5  they are experts.  There are five members of the

          6  BSA, currently including two former commissioners of

          7  the New York City Department of Buildings, one

          8  planner, and two other persons, commissioners, who

          9  are well qualified in matters of land use.  They pay

         10  keen attention to persons and organizations which

         11  appear at their hearings, and which are directly

         12  affected by BSA decisions.

         13                 Oftentimes, BSA hearings are filled

         14  with community members who seek to express their

         15  opinions.  Persons I have witnessed appearing at BSA

         16  hearings include neighbors, civic groups, community

         17  boards, and council members, such as yourselves.

         18                 Sometimes these people speak in

         19  support of an application, and other times they

         20  speak in opposition but the important part is that

         21  they can and do participate.

         22                 Even more importantly, their

         23  testimony is given great weight, despite what you

         24  have heard today, when relevant to the applicable

         25  decisions before the Board of Standards and Appeals.I
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          2  will call your attention to two specific examples

          3  because we have been talking in generalities today.

          4                 One example is an application which I

          5  was involved with while I was employed at the law

          6  firm of Sheldon Lobel.  It involved a request for a

          7  variance at 502 Avenue P in Brooklyn.  It was

          8  assigned BSA Calendar Number 97- 00- BZ.  It was a

          9  proposed conversion of a existing automotive service

         10  station to a 7- 11 convenience store.  It was

         11  vehemently opposed by the predominately Orthodox

         12  community, which surrounded it.  Despite the fact

         13  that the property located in a commercial district,

         14  where 24 hour uses could be done, as of right a

         15  variance was requested because of a previous Board

         16  action, and the Board of Standards and Appeals

         17  denied the application.  The application was

         18  appealed by the property owner. It was brought to

         19  the State Supreme Court, where the court upheld the

         20  decision of the Board of Standards and Appeals.  So,

         21  although there may be one or two examples that

         22  people can cite when the BSA did not listen to them,

         23  this is concrete evidence that the BSA did listen to

         24  them.

         25                 And another example, when overriding
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          2  land use concerns are at hand, the community issues

          3  are considered by the BSA and incorporated into

          4  their approval.  There has been no talk today, not

          5  significant discussion, upon the conditions of the

          6  Board of Standards and Appeals has opposed upon

          7  applicants to attend to community concerns.

          8                 The matter I am calling your

          9  attention to right now also occurred while I was

         10  employed at the law firm of Sheldon Lobel, P.C., and

         11  it involved a minimal variance requesting the height

         12  of setbacks for a rabbinical seminary at 147- 06

         13  76th Avenue in Queens.  It was assigned BSA Calendar

         14  Number 99- 00- BZ.  Many neighbors came out in

         15  staunch opposition to this application as well, they

         16  argued that it was out of character with the

         17  surrounding area, and it did not fit within their

         18  community.  The BSA approved that application, with

         19  stipulations directed at addressing the concerns of

         20  the neighbors.  Since that approval, the community

         21  board in the area, Community Board 8, has used that

         22  facility to hold their public hearings on land use

         23  matters.  The facility has been welcomed by the

         24  community.  People come there to pray.  People come

         25  to use the library.  People to come to utilize the
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          2  facility. I have seen council members there.  I have

          3  seen Congesspersons there.  The facility is utilized

          4  and welcomes.

          5                 The conclusion is simple.  The BSA

          6  performs its statutory authorized mandate in a fine

          7  and proper manner.

          8                 As cited in the recent New York Times

          9  article, which I am sure we are all familiar with

         10  about the BSA which was just published last week, 85

         11  percent, and there is a typo in the submission I

         12  passed into you because I did it from memory, I said

         13  80 percent, the Times article says 85 percent of the

         14  BSA's decisions are upheld by the courts of New York

         15  State.

         16                 Are we to believe that this Council

         17  is more well equipped than the courts of New York

         18  State, and the Board of Standards and Appeals, the

         19  expert, to address matters of land use? And, I

         20  apologize that I am lengthy but I have a lot of

         21  points to address here.

         22                 This leads to the Article 78

         23  proceedings, and established secondary- level of BSA

         24  review, which as the BSA operates in an efficient

         25  and proper manner.  Article 78 of the CPLR
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          2  authorizes any affected person to bring or challenge

          3  a decision of the New York Board of Standards and

          4  Appeals.  Adding another level would just be

          5  duplicative.

          6                 And, as I said before, only a small

          7  number of applications before the BSA are

          8  controversial.  I think what your Council is missing

          9  the point, is that the majority of applicants before

         10  the Board of Standards and Appeals are not wealthy

         11  developers or national corporations, as you may, or

         12  as some of the speakers may have you believe here.

         13                 The majority of applications before

         14  the Board of Standards and Appeals are Mom and Pop

         15  businesses.  They are individual homeowners.  They

         16  are small religious institutions. Each seeking to

         17  grow, expand and thrive in their current

         18  neighborhoods.

         19                 You ask what fear do we have?  The

         20  fear that we have is that the increased cost in

         21  time, which could be expended on a procedure, like

         22  you are proposing here today, would increase at

         23  least 100 percent of the cost of an application to

         24  the Board of Standards and Appeals.  A church or a

         25  synagogue must now consider being wrapped up in a
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          2  proceeding, an administrative proceeding, that could

          3  take we well advance in a year and a half.  Right

          4  now, the Board of Standards and Appeals takes seven

          5  months, that is another seven months on top of the

          6  time frame.

          7                 You ask what the fear is?  The fear

          8  is the chilling effect.  The individual property

          9  owner cannot afford to give themselves two years.

         10  If they happen to upset the neighbor next door to

         11  them, who happens to know the council person, who

         12  happens to call your council, and begs you to call

         13  up an application, that will be the effect.  It is

         14  known in legal terms as a chilling effect, and it

         15  will strike at the heart of our property rights. The

         16  right to bring an application to a zoning board when

         17  the government restrictions are too strict.

         18                 I thank you for your time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  How do you come

         20  up with the figure that the costs would be increased

         21  by 100 percent?  How do you arrive at that?

         22                 MR. PALATNIK:  A landowner now will

         23  have to carry the operating costs, or the covering

         24  costs, of a piece of land of upwards now, in the

         25  Board of Standards and Appeals process, from start
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          2  to finish takes approximately eight months.  If

          3  there were to be a call- up review, that could add

          4  another seven to eight months. It would also require

          5  legal expertise to be evoked.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  It is 60 days in

          7  the bill.

          8                 MR. PALATNIK:  It is 60 days in the

          9  bill.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  So, how do you

         11  come up with seven or eight months?

         12                 MR. PALATNIK:  By the time, after it

         13  comes out of the bill, after it comes out of

         14  Committee, it would probably be remanded back to the

         15  Board of Standards and Appeals at some point, and go

         16  through more hearings at the Board of Standards and

         17  Appeals.

         18                 Also, there are going to be

         19  additional experts that are going to be needed.

         20  Your Council is not just simply going to take a

         21  look, you are going to ask people to come in and to

         22  testify. Every time an individual homeowner sends an

         23  architect in to appear before your Board, before

         24  your Council, excuse me, I am used to appearing

         25  before Boards not the Council.  Every time somebody
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          2  comes in, it is going cost them a significant sum of

          3  money.

          4                 Now, yes, some people may feel

          5  concerned, I think you asked before for solutions?

          6  Why don't you arm the public with the ability to

          7  analyze these items intelligently.  You ask what

          8  some solutions are.  I often times --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Eric, Eric.

         10                 MR. PALATNIK:  If I may just finish

         11  for a second. I often times come before community

         12  boards where there are two or three or four members

         13  of an entire community representing that community.

         14  Those are the concerns that come up to the Board of

         15  Standards and Appeals sometimes.  Not all the time

         16   --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Eric, I

         18  certainly do not disagree with your analysis in

         19  certain circumstances, but again, that goes back to

         20  what is your fear?  If there is a small percentage

         21  of the applications out there that are creating all

         22  the problems, what is your fear?

         23                 You have not answered my question, I

         24  am not asking you to give me another response.  I

         25  asked the question about where did you come up with
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          2  the figure of 100 percent higher cost, I do not

          3  think I got a answer.

          4                 MR. PALATNIK:  I would like to answer

          5  that for you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  No, no, no.  You

          7  have your one shot at giving me an answer.  And, as

          8  far as I am concerned you did not answer it.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 The next panel is Zack Winestine from

         11  Greenwich Village Community Task Force, Ana

         12  Schickler from Vinegar Hill Neighborhood

         13  Association, Albert Bennett from the Morton Street

         14  Block Association, Phil Konigsberg from the Bay

         15  Terrace Community Alliance.

         16                 MR. WINESTINE:  Hi, my name is Zack

         17  Winestine from the Greenwich Village Community

         18  Association.

         19                 I have to say from much of the

         20  opposition testimony that I have heard so far today,

         21  the Council might want to consider renaming the

         22  Boards of Standards and Appeals, the Sheldon Lobel

         23  Benevolent Association, since that really does seem

         24  to be the primary issue that we are dealing with

         25  today.
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          2                 I would really just sort of like to

          3  take off on what Council Member McMahon said

          4  earlier.

          5                 What we are facing here is not a

          6  discussion of the value of variances or the value of

          7  the variance process.  What we are facing here, or

          8  should be, is a discussion of the abuse of this

          9  process.

         10                 The issue is not the Mom and Pop

         11  store that has a problem with the need to add a

         12  small extension, or a synagogue that needs a bit of

         13  additional space.

         14                 The problem is wealthy developers

         15  coming into a community to make a fast buck, and

         16  trying to make that fast buck at the expense of the

         17  existing zoning and the existing zoning process.   I

         18  would just like to briefly talk about the history of

         19  variances in my community, which is the far west

         20  Village.            Essentially, there has been very

         21  significant and irreversible damage caused to our

         22  community by variances.  One example is, what had

         23  been a manufacturing zoning on the west side of

         24  Washington Street, between Horatio and West 12th

         25  Street.  In the early 1990's, the block on the west
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          2  side of Washington, between Jane and Horatio, excuse

          3  me, between West 12th and Jane, which had been zoned

          4  manufacturing, and had been the home of New York

          5  Builders Supply Company was changed through a

          6  variance process to allow for residential.  There

          7  was a major community fight, everybody weighed in

          8  against it, the community board was on record

          9  against it, the community went to the BSA with a

         10  full panoply of lawyers, experts, architects,

         11  economic analysts, spent a lot of money, and got

         12  basically got nowhere; the variance was granted. The

         13  consequence of that variance was to lead to another

         14  variance a few years later, on the block immediately

         15  to the south, where essentially the same thing

         16  happened.  Also, at roughly the same time, Moore's

         17  Meats, a small meat packing company, which employed

         18  ten to fifteen people, also basically sold out to a

         19  new owner, who wished to convert to residential and

         20  got a variance to do that.              The net

         21  result has been a change of what had been a

         22  potentially viable manufacturing district, to a

         23  residential district.  And, this happened instead of

         24  going through the zoning process, purely by

         25  variance.  One small piece of this district remains,
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          2  which is the very valuable lot on West Street,

          3  between West 12th and Bathone (phonetic), now the

          4  site of Superior Ink.

          5                 Because of all the variances already

          6  granted in the surrounding area, the community is

          7  now left with the very difficult, perhaps

          8  impossible, task of trying to prevent one small

          9  orphaned bit of manufacturing, and it makes the

         10  history of variances, is going to make this almost

         11  impossible, and has essentially lead to the complete

         12  rezoning of this area, except without ever having

         13  gone through the appropriate process, and I am just

         14  grateful that the Council is finally taking steps to

         15  address this problem, and I greatly hope they

         16  succeed.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MR. SCHICKLER:  First of all I would

         19  like to introduce myself.

         20                 My name is Ans Schickler, and I am a

         21  resident of Vinegar Hill, I am not sure if you are

         22  aware of where Vinegar Hill is, but it is right

         23  across the East River on the Brooklyn Waterfront.  I

         24  am sure you might have heard of Dumbo, we are a trio

         25  of neighborhoods, Dumbo, the Fulton Ferry Landing
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          2  and Vinegar Hill.  You are probably aware that a lot

          3  of development is going on there, so, I would like

          4  to thank you, first of all, for giving us the

          5  opportunity to let our opinion be heard.

          6                 I will make it brief, this statement

          7  that I am going to read should be in your files, a

          8  letter had been send.

          9                 Dear Commissioners, the Vinegar Hill

         10  Neighborhood Associations is in support of your

         11  legislation to amend the City Charter to create an

         12  appeals process for Board of Standards and Appeals

         13  zoning variance decisions.

         14                 As a mixed- use, water- front

         15  neighborhood already in the throws of residential

         16  conversion, we know all to well how our elected

         17  officials support of our expressed interest can be

         18  subverted in the end by the BSA.

         19                 Councilman Avella's legislation will

         20  go a long way towards ensuring that our voices will

         21  be heard.  It is an idea for which every New York

         22  neighborhood in transition will be truly grateful.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 MR. BENNETT:  My name is Albert

         25  Bennett.  I am President of the Morton Street Block
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          2  Association in the far west Village, and I would

          3  like to thank the Chair, both for Intro. 170 and for

          4  his extraordinary patience this morning.

          5                 I will be very, very brief.

          6                 I cannot imagine any community group

          7  that would have more enthusiasm in supporting Intro.

          8  170, than the 174 household members of my block

          9  association because of a single variance which

         10  created what is now known as Morton Square.

         11                 I do not know if you have been on

         12  West Street recently but we have a full block

         13  residential intrusion into what was previously a

         14  very delicate balance of residential, plus

         15  manufacturing, plus commercial and 1,000 new

         16  residents are going to appear.

         17                 I should also like to make certain

         18  that you should be receiving, or have received, a

         19  fax from a board member of Community Board 2, from

         20  Doris Deather (phonetic), who is the world's

         21  foremost authority on suing, and I am sure that it

         22  is very much in support of Intro. 170.

         23                 If I could end with just an

         24  absolutely, totally personal note.

         25                 Testifying before the BSA, my
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          2  testimony was received with what I would say varied

          3  from boredom to hostility, and it is not a pleasant

          4  experience, and I certainly look forward to your

          5  reviewing these unwarranted variances.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. KONIGSBERG:  Good morning

          8  Councilman Avella, members of the dais here.

          9                 I am President of the Bay Terrace

         10  Community Alliance, I also was appointed on

         11  Community Board 7.

         12                 I am not a zoning expert by far means

         13  but I consider the members on Community Board 7 in

         14  Queens some very highly respected people with

         15  knowledge in zoning, and I have gotten to the point

         16  where I am frustrated on how many times a community

         17  board has unanimously taken a stand on a variance

         18  request, and it has been disregarded entirely by the

         19  Board of Standard and Appeals.

         20                 Month after month, we get variances

         21  that come up and the Board bases their opinion, or

         22  makes their vote on the committees that present

         23  their findings, and these again, are I believe

         24  experts in that field.  So, the frustration has

         25  gotten to the point where I am so glad that we have
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          2  taken now steps to, hopefully, amend that this

          3  process, again, everyone mentioned before like every

          4  case was going to be going from the Bureau of

          5  Standard and Appeals, would be brought up to the

          6  City Council, and that is not what I take this

          7  proposal for, this Intro.

          8                 These are for the exceptions where

          9  you line up everything, the community, the members

         10  of the Council, other members of the community have

         11  made it very clear that this is not for their

         12  community, and yet we continuously see it.  I bring

         13  up something that I believe has gotten to the Board

         14  of Standard and Appeals now, is in Flushing the RKO

         15  Plaza is a proposal, a development that is three

         16  times, the bulk that their Aprican (phonetic) has

         17  proposed is three times the allowable bulk according

         18  to the zoning laws, and we turned that down, 35 to

         19  nothing, unanimously against the applicant.  The

         20  community wants a beautiful piece of property down

         21  right where the RKO Theater has been but we

         22  certainly do not want something that is far out or

         23  outlandish.

         24                 And, generally, I would say that the

         25  BSA has become what some other colleagues of mine
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          2  consider an agency in the City, as a Board that is

          3  out of control.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 MS. BASEHORE:  Hello, my name is

          6  Shirl Basehore, and I am President of the Committee

          7  for Preservation of Jamaica Estates and Fresh

          8  Meadows.

          9                 I have to agree with all of the other

         10  speakers who have spoken in support of your Intro.

         11  170, as it is called.  They have said it much better

         12  than I probably can, I just have a few things to

         13  add.

         14                 Variances are supposed to be a rare

         15  event, and as a last resort when there are no other

         16  remedies available.

         17                 I have found, I am currently involved

         18  in opposing a variance, actually five variances,

         19  that are requested by a community facility near my

         20  home.  I have found that the procedures are so

         21  complicated that the "average Joe" has no idea how

         22  to navigate them, and from the start of the process,

         23  the foundation has already been laid by the

         24  applicant so that the real public has no idea what

         25  is going on, even in community boards.  That has
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          2  been my experience.

          3                 It is difficult for the average

          4  citizen to get any answers, and to get any

          5  assistance in navigating the procedures. It puts the

          6  average citizen at a distinct disadvantage,

          7  especially when you are not politically connected.

          8                 To have to hire a legal counsel and

          9  other experts, in order to go and be represented at

         10  BSA with your concerns, is overwhelming and is not a

         11  reality for most homeowners.  And, giving a variance

         12  to one person always takes away rights of another,

         13  so having that financial hardship to begin with for

         14  people is a double- edged sword.

         15                 So, the abuse of current zoning

         16  regulations and variance procedure requests, by

         17  certain parties, especially I have concerns about

         18  community facilities, is of special importance.  So,

         19  the uniqueness and the characterization of various

         20  enclaves of our City, as well as our quality of

         21  life, is being affected by this. The fact that BSA,

         22  and I know it is being disputed now by the

         23  opposition, that 93 percent of their applications

         24  are granted, is astounding to me.  I do not know

         25  that they really gave us any statistics to prove
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          2  what they said otherwise.

          3                 So, as I said, I speak in favor of

          4  your introduction of your bill 170.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  One quick

          7  question.

          8                 Did I hear you correctly that the

          9  applicant you are talking about specifically has

         10  actually poured the foundation before getting the

         11  variance?

         12                 MS. BASEHORE:  No, no, I mean the

         13  foundation for their getting their approval through

         14  the various--.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Okay.

         16                 MS. BASEHORE:  Oh, they did that on

         17  their first variance back in 1986, but now they are

         18  coming back asking for five variances, but they

         19  totally built their building in`86 and then got that

         20  approved, and now the want to extend but they did

         21  that before, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Okay.

         23                 MS. BASEHORE:  But, they did all

         24  their little footwork that they know what to do for

         25  this process, and the average citizen does not know
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          2  that.

          3                 You find out about it, you get a

          4  little notice and then all of a sudden you have to

          5  go do all this investigation and it is hard to get

          6  the right answers.  People tell you it is`as of

          7  right' but it is not`as of right', they are asking

          8  for five variances, that is not`as of right'.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thanks.

         10                 MR. BEARAK:  My name is Richard

         11  Bearak.  I am here to emphatically support the

         12  legislation and to outline why I think it is

         13  historically appropriate with other safeguards that

         14  have been put in place vis a vis, the BSA.

         15                 The 1932 Hoffsteder (phonetic)

         16  Commission, which was the state commission which

         17  investigated the BSA, Samuel C. Berry (phonetic) in

         18  the 1932 Hoffsteder Report which was the state

         19  investigation committee of the BSA, said it very

         20  simply, he said it must be apparent that the people

         21  of the City of New York have a very real, and a very

         22  substantial interest in the proper enforcement of

         23  the building zone regulations, and that any

         24  variation of these regulations, except in the

         25  presence of a particular expediency, works a
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          2  prejudicial interference with the health, welfare,

          3  and the best interest of the inhabitants of the City

          4  of New York.

          5                 That committee found that the Board

          6  was, and is, subject to political considerations,

          7  especially in important cases and that there was

          8  need for constructive legislation and respect to the

          9  work of that Board, the BSA.

         10                 The first practical step was with the

         11  Thatcher (phonetic) Commission, which established

         12  City Planning Commission, which basically was formed

         13  to oversee the orderly growth of the City.

         14                 There was many intermediate

         15  safeguards, probably one of the most important was

         16  put into place with the 1961 Comprehensive Zoning

         17  Amendment.  That was where the, well I will quote,

         18   "removing loopholes available through loosely

         19  controlled", variance procedures was a principle

         20  goal of the new resolution and that is when Auto v.

         21  Steinhope (phonetic) were the enumeration of the

         22  five findings were put in place as a safeguard.  I

         23  see this as only a continuation of that process, as

         24  I said.

         25                 I have been involved in the past
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          2  several years, in three Article 78 proceedings.  One

          3  of them is reported in the recent municipal art

          4  society report, which was promulgated in March.

          5                 Basically, and this is my opinion,

          6  what I have found is that there is a simple process

          7  with a limited number of experts and lawyers, by

          8  which the basically the cost to create a development

          9  is inflated, and the end product is low- balled.

         10                 There is no oversight of any of these

         11  complex financial analysis, and I think in our area,

         12  what we saw was through which was basically the

         13  Hudson Square area, what you saw was a de facto

         14  rezoning of the area through BSA variances, and

         15  those variances actually began to define the

         16  neighborhood character or C finding.  So, it was

         17  just a vicious circle.

         18                 If there was oversight on any one of

         19  the Article 78, the findings by the BSA, as far as

         20  the economic analysis, it would be apparent by

         21  double- checking the offering plans with the state

         22  AG's office, or the real estate prices in which the

         23  units are selling.  These are high- end, luxury

         24  developments.  It would be apparent, and I think the

         25  perceived abuses would be real and egregious that
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          2  the numbers of a six- percent return which is a

          3  typical number that the experts come in and argue

          4  would be, in fact, a windfall, and I think this is

          5  precisely the reason why this legislation is so

          6  important.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MS. ASHBY:  Good afternoon.  My name

          9  is Elizabeth Ashby, and I am speaking for Defenders

         10  of the Historic Upper East Side, and we strongly

         11  support your Intro. 170.

         12                 I am sorry that it is necessary but

         13  it is more than necessary, and the Article 78 route

         14  of appeal has really two flaws in it as it relates

         15  to the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         16                 One, of course, is the cost, which is

         17  enormous to go, we can represent ourselves at the

         18  Board of Standards and Appeals, we could represent

         19  ourselves before you but once you get into court,

         20  you must engage lawyers.  We always have had

         21  experts. When the bills go up, twenty- five years I

         22  have been involved and a lot of these, between

         23  $200,000 and $300,000 by the time you are finished,

         24  and that is not reasonable.

         25                 The other thing where I think that
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          2  your appeal process will make a great help is that

          3  the courts are obliged to defer to the`allegedly'

          4  expert agency, and there is no sworn testimony.

          5                 The Board of Standards and Appeals is

          6  then, therefore, free to accept ludicrous testimony,

          7  and we have seen them do it, they go to court, and

          8  as long as there is something in there that says

          9  this building was conceived by an architect in outer

         10  Mongolia, that will be believed, and that will be

         11  accepted.           So, I think that those two

         12  safety valves, those two things really mandate that

         13  it come to you.

         14                 I am going to suggest a little

         15  further work in polishing up the laws regarding the

         16  Board of Standards and Appeals. One is, that

         17  testimony must be sworn testimony.  This present

         18  system invites corruption, and it also creates a

         19  situation where the public has not only no

         20  confidence in the Board of Standards and Appeals, it

         21  looses confidence in government.  There it goes

         22  again, what do you think, it is just all the powers

         23  that be controlling this, something is done

         24  underground, and I think that it must be straight,

         25  it must be above board.
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          2                 The other think I think that should

          3  be required, they must make each of the findings

          4  individually.  When the findings cannot be made,

          5  there always is an end to the resolution, wherefore,

          6  all the findings have been made.  Nobody can make

          7  the finding on the Upper East Side that there is a

          8  unique physical condition peculiar to, and in

          9  inherent in the zoning lot.

         10                 So, I think that those two things

         11  should be in future legislation, just to make sure

         12  that this is a straight and above board process.

         13                 And, one thing, as a member of the

         14  community board, I am not speaking for them but a

         15  previous person testified that our views were

         16  anti-Semitic and racist and I was not asked by our

         17  Jewish members to say that they, but I am sure they

         18  would object, I was not asked by our African-

         19  American members, but I am sure that they would

         20  object to that too.

         21                 MR. SOCCI:  Members of the Committee,

         22  my name is Eliott Socci.  I am President of the

         23  Douglaston Civic Association.

         24                 Past experience has shown that BSA

         25  has granted variance that has proven to be harmful
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          2  to residential communities. In such circumstances, a

          3  resident or a civic association has little of no

          4  recourse to overturn the granting of a harmful

          5  variance.

          6                 In the past, as you are aware, the

          7  Board of Estimates served as an appeals process.  As

          8  should also be aware, New York City homeowners have

          9  endured an increase of approximately 30 percent in

         10  real estate tax over the last two years.  Putting

         11  these two facts together, one sees the City taking

         12  away from homeowners with one hand, and taking with

         13  the other hand as well. There are too many

         14  occurrences of harmful variances that when repeated

         15  in the residential community can bring about the

         16  destruction of that community.  There variances are

         17  often coupled with another harmful practice known

         18  as, "as of right community facilities".

         19                 Union Street in Flushing, Queens is a

         20  prime example of the destruction of a residential

         21  community brought about by community facilities and

         22  the granting of ill advised variances.            Another

         23  recent example is the granting of five variances to

         24  a house of worship in Bayside, Queens.  Each of

         25  these variances will have a negative impact on the
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          2  surrounding neighborhood.  Yet, there was no legal

          3  recourse to the local residents, except a very

          4  costly court case that ended in failure over a

          5  technicality that had nothing to do with the issue

          6  at hand.

          7                 In light of the financial burden

          8  placed on New York City homeowners, bringing about a

          9  reform that can protect the interests of these

         10  homeowners is appropriate, fair and overdue.

         11                 Allowing BSA to continue granting

         12  harmful variances, without some form of regulatory

         13  control, is not good government. It is not fair, and

         14  it is a concept who's time has past.

         15                 New York City homeowners have a right

         16  to be protected by the agencies of City government,

         17  not to be threatened by their actions.  Intro. 170

         18  should be made into law.

         19                 That is the end of my prepared

         20  statement.  I am compelled to respond to things I

         21  have heard this morning.

         22                 The notion that BSA goes along with

         23  community boards is simply inaccurate.  If the

         24  community board approves a variance, BSA likely will

         25  approve it.  If BSA disapproves a variance, it means

                                                            144

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  nothing to BSA.

          3                 I would like to comment on what

          4  Council Member Melinda Katz said about BSA being

          5  better to deal with lately then in the past.  Why is

          6  that?  The procedures have not changed, the

          7  structure of government has not changed.  What has

          8  changed is the people.  We should not be subject to

          9  the character, background or any other personal

         10  characteristic of people without some form of

         11  regulatory control.

         12                 I have a few more things to say

         13  please.

         14                 The notion that financial analysis is

         15  meaningless is ludicrous when it is the developers

         16  who cry poverty and cry hardship.  The notion that

         17  the Supreme Court is an appeals process is

         18  laughable.  The notion that getting a variance is a

         19  right is not true.  Applying for a variance is a

         20  right, getting it is not a right.

         21                 And, I will cut out to the last

         22  point.  You have been told many times that you

         23  missed the point.  I did not count the number of

         24  times but on your behalf, I would like to tell the

         25  developers;  they missed the point.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.

          4                 Next, Bob Harris representing the

          5  West Cunningham Park Civic Association, Stuart

          6  Waldman, Federation to Preserve Greenwich Village,

          7  Tyler Cassell, North Flushing Civic Association, and

          8  Linda Mandell.

          9                 MR. HARRIS:  Hello, my name is Bob

         10  Harris from the West Cunningham Park Civic

         11  Association in Fresh Meadow, Queens.

         12                 I am here to back up what most of the

         13  people who are for the bill has said.  We think the

         14  bill is important.  We think there should be a way

         15  of oversight of the BSA.  When the Board of

         16  Standards and Appeals was eliminated years ago, we

         17  kept saying it is going to be hard for the

         18  homeowners, I mean --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Bob, excuse me

         20  for interrupting.

         21                 Are the people coming in for the next

         22  hearing? Could we, we are going to be done in about

         23  15 minutes, if you could wait.  Just have a seat, so

         24  this way we can end this meeting and then you could

         25  get on to the next.  But, if you could just have a
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          2  seat, you will have plenty of time to sign in.

          3                 Sorry.

          4                 MR. HARRIS:  Yes, the BSA, when the

          5  Board of Standards and Appeals was ended, we felt

          6  this was going to happen. The cost of appealing to

          7  the BSA or whatever agency would be too high, we

          8  felt that the Board of Standards and Appeals was a

          9  good way of the average homeowner, and my area

         10  represents R2, a little bit R3, R1, and we are

         11  plain, ordinary homeowners who are not about to make

         12  money on the property unless we die and the heirs

         13  sell it.

         14                 The builders who come in want to make

         15  money, or a house of worship decides it wants to

         16  make money by getting bigger and having a kitchen,

         17  or renting it out to a school, and therefore, they

         18  want to increase the size of the house of worship to

         19  make money for their house of worship.  We are

         20  opposed to this.  We feel the residential

         21  neighborhoods should be preserved, and we want a

         22  better way of doing it then having to go and hire

         23  our own lawyers if we find that the BSA has turned

         24  us down.

         25                 By the way, we are all volunteers.
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          2  Anybody who is appearing here is for the bill has

          3  probably taken off the day from work, and lost money

          4  or could have been doing other things in their

          5  neighborhood but they came here as a volunteer.

          6  Other people make money for being here.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MR. CASSELL:  Hi, good afternoon.  I

          9  have a statement to read.

         10                 Good afternoon, Council Member

         11  Avella, other council members, people of the

         12  community.

         13                 My name is Tyler Cassell.  I am the

         14  President of the North Flushing Civic Association,

         15  and member of Community Board Number 7, and a Vice

         16  President with the Queens Civic Congress, an

         17  umbrella organization that represents 103 civic

         18  organizations in Queens.

         19                 I am speaking this morning as

         20  President of the North Flushing Civic Association,

         21  and long- time resident of Flushing, Queens.

         22                 I live in a low- density, one-

         23  family, residential neighborhood designed as R2, in

         24  the northern section of Flushing. For a residential

         25  community, like mine, the most hated city agency
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          2  without a doubt is the Board of Standards and

          3  Appeals.

          4                 Time and time again, our civic

          5  association, our neighboring civic associations have

          6  witnessed variances be given to owners and builders

          7  without regard to the local communities wishes.    The

          8  current process of making BSA's decisions final is

          9  wrong.  We urge you to allow the appeals process to

         10  be created to challenge unneeded and unwanted

         11  decisions.

         12                 Recently in Flushing, the BSA allowed

         13  an illegally created parking lot.  In Bayside, they

         14  granted five variances to a religious use, major

         15  expansion on a one- family house that will dwarf the

         16  neighbors houses when completed.  In College Point,

         17  a major drugstore chain was allowed to create

         18  another mega- drugstore on an already busy

         19  intersection where there is hardly any parking.

         20  College Point Boulevard is a street lined with Mom

         21  and Pop stores, and this mega- drugstore is

         22  blatantly out of place. In addition, the small

         23  community of College Point has plenty of drugstores

         24  without the addition of another one.

         25                 When the Board of Estimate was
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          2  eliminated, and the Board of Standards and Appeals

          3  was created, an appeals process was conveniently

          4  left out.  Even if you sue the BSA, it does not mean

          5  their decision will be overturned.  Unfortunately,

          6  most civic associations do not have the money to

          7  mount even a minimal fight against the BSA

          8  decisions, so they loose just because they cannot

          9  even fight.

         10                 The community boards vote on variance

         11  issues is strictly advisory.  So, it is not

         12  surprising that variances are disapproved, head

         13  straight for BSA.  In most cases presented to the

         14  community board, they are set up to go straight to

         15  the BSA, as if the community board did not even

         16  exist.

         17                 In our opinion, BSA has never seen a

         18  variance it did not like.

         19                 We in Flushing, have continually

         20  witnessed the BSA approval of many variances that

         21  were voted against by our civic associations, voted

         22  on and disapproved by the community boards, rallied

         23  against by our elected officials, and even opposed

         24  by our borough president.

         25                 Overriding the communities wishes
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          2  must stop.

          3                 In order to protect our quality of

          4  life, and have our say in our future, we the people

          5  must have the ability to challenge decisions that

          6  are not appropriate for our communities. We must be

          7  able to override them, should a strong enough case

          8  be presented for doing so.

          9                 Making BSA accountable to City

         10  Council is the right thing to do.  City Council

         11  members, and duly elected members of the community;

         12  they are our representatives, we are in contact with

         13  the wants and needs in the pulse of the community.

         14  Their decision should be foremost in this process.

         15                 There is no`one size fits all' BSA

         16  decision- making process that serves our City well.

         17  You must take into account the specific site, the

         18  local neighborhood, the surrounding saturation

         19  of`like' facilities, and most important of all, the

         20  wishes of those who live there.  Those residents

         21  have to live there long after BSA decisions have

         22  been made.

         23                 In order to serve the interests of

         24  the City and its citizens best, we need to operate

         25  under the concept of community based planning,
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          2  rather then have the City dictate to us.  The

          3  borough president, City Planning for boroughs, local

          4  community boards, civic associations, and community

          5  member committees should be at the forefront of

          6  community issues.  We the people should be empowered

          7  to have a say in our City's future.

          8                 We urge you to support Intro. 170.

          9                 MS. MANDELL:  Hi, good afternoon.  My

         10  name is Linda Mandell.  I live in Flushing, land of

         11  variances.

         12                 It seems that the will of the people,

         13  the voice of many civic associations, and the

         14  decisions of Community Board 7 count for very

         15  little.

         16                 The Board of Standards and Appeals is

         17  composed of five people who are appointed to their

         18  positions.

         19                 Who are these people?  Having

         20  listened to their defenders today, I feel that I

         21  have been belittled, patronized, and chastised,

         22  unnecessarily, I hope.  I was also a little

         23  frightened to be told that two of the members of the

         24  BSA are former commissioners of the Department of

         25  Buildings.  That is indeed not a very good
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          2  recommendation.

          3                 They also said that local people

          4  should consult with architects and engineers.  That

          5  would not be helpful because that is not the

          6  problem.  You do not need an architect or engineer

          7  to tell you that all the trees should not be cut

          8  down.  To tell you that a building that is built in

          9  a U- shape inside of which are beautiful trees,

         10  flowers and gardens, that have been there for 40

         11  years, should not suddenly have a building

         12  constructed in that courtyard, so people that used

         13  to look out the window and see trees, are suddenly

         14  looking in someone else's window two feet away.    We

         15  do not need help to be told that buildings in my

         16  neighborhood should not go directly to the building

         17  line, that when all the buildings are six stories

         18  high, there should not be a nineteen story building

         19  next door to it.

         20                 It has been mentioned several times,

         21  there is a whole block of private homes that are now

         22  surrounded by parking lots.  This does not make any

         23  sense.  Most of these represent cases that have had

         24  battles that have been lost.

         25                 Clearly, oversight is needed.
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          2                 The members of the City Council

          3  represent the whole City, and are familiar with

          4  local conditions, needs, and opinions. Further, they

          5  are elected, and as such are answerable to their

          6  constituents.

          7                 I believe City Council should be

          8  allowed to act as the check to BSA, we need a

          9  meaningful appeals process.

         10                 Before our neighborhoods further

         11  loose their individual characters, please vote in

         12  favor of this legislation.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I know some

         15  people have had to leave, and we are putting their

         16  names into the record.

         17                 I think there may be just one person

         18  left,

         19  Matt Yates.

         20                 Is there anybody else signed up to

         21  speak on this item?

         22                 MR. YATES:  Councilman Avella,

         23  members of the Committee, I thank you for taking the

         24  time to listen to people today on this most

         25  important issue.

                                                            154

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 I am going to specifically talk about

          3  the BSA, and the amplified effect of this agency on

          4  a very serious issue that affects Brooklyn and New

          5  York City.

          6                 There is situated in the peninsula of

          7  Red Hook a container port, and also an industrial

          8  region that has flourished in the last seven or

          9  eight years, a 60 percent growth in jobs, thousands

         10  of jobs in one square mile.

         11                 I think that what I am about to

         12  describe is of the same pathology that everybody's

         13  complaint is, which is planning without consent.

         14  But, I guess that we have experienced, and I think

         15  we are very lucky in that we have been able to mount

         16  a funded and experienced challenge.  The community

         17  groups are comprised of more lawyers than you can

         18  shake a stick at.  Our community board, of which I

         19  am a committee member, has extremely well qualified

         20  people to challenge this runaway process.  And yet,

         21  we have been unable to do it.

         22                 In the`instant case' the decision was

         23  made against a body of evidence in the record, and

         24  we fail to understand how BSA could have been so

         25  flagrant to grant a variance to a building which is
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          2  six feet away from a container port, and which is

          3  required for warehousing.  They have refused to let

          4  it, which is right there one of the grounds under

          5  hardship, and we come full circle to the point where

          6  we looked at how can we challenge this?

          7                 Well, I take offense at the earlier

          8  speaker that made a couple of points about people's

          9  opposition being emotional.             I think we

         10  have to ask ourselves why is it that these variances

         11  are so strongly opposed?  I do not think I have

         12  heard anybody speak today in opposition of people

         13  who genuinely have a small hardship, where there is

         14  some subtle or discrete correction they need made to

         15  some aberration, as these developers would tell us.

         16  I do not think that is the opposition, and I think

         17  you are right, Councilman Avella, no good answer was

         18  given to the question.

         19                 What is the problem with having this

         20  extra layer of review?  Our complaint about the

         21  variance that was granted in Red Hook was it

         22  completely changes the character of a whole area

         23  that involves a multi- plex of agencies.  You have

         24  five people that made a decision on no rational

         25  basis that would potentially take billions of
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          2  dollars to unwind.  Why?  I think one of the people

          3  said it earlier because the BSA have never seen a

          4  variance application they do not like.

          5                 In closing, I think that I just, if

          6  that is okay, if I could just make a couple more

          7  points.  I think some things need to be reinforced,

          8  and I think that this proposition or resolution does

          9  exactly that.

         10                 These variances are not a given.

         11  People's right to make an application is just that

         12  but the grand thing is discretionary and should be

         13  made so based on good evidence, and that evidence

         14  should be sworn.

         15                 I think also, it is time speak

         16  clearly about what this pathology is.  These

         17  problems have risen to such level that the City

         18  Council needs to act, not because these are land

         19  owners who are needing corrections to small

         20  problems.

         21                 It is because there is a small group

         22  of developers that are using this variance process

         23  to push the envelope, and it must be reigned in, and

         24  I urge that this resolution be passed.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  A number of

                                                            157

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  community boards and civic groups have also sent in

          3  testimony in support of the legislation.

          4                 Queens Community Board 11, Manhattan

          5  Community

          6  Board 3, and Staten Island Community Board 2, West

          7  Morland Association, Udos (phonetic) Cove

          8  Preservation Committee, Greater Whitestone Tax Base

          9  Civic Association, Beachside Bungalow Preservation

         10  Association of Far Rockaway, The Democratic Club of

         11  Flushing, Holly Civic Association, and the Forest

         12  Hills Community and Civic Association.

         13                 That concludes this first hearing on

         14  this bill.  I appreciate everybody coming out.

         15                 In terms of the Chair of this

         16  Committee, we are going to pursue moving ahead this

         17  legislation and will be having meetings with the

         18  Speaker of the City Council, and also my colleagues,

         19  and the Administration as well.

         20                 I thank you for your support, and we

         21  will continue to move on this issue.

         22                 The Committee on Zoning and

         23  Franchises is in recess until Wednesday before the

         24  Land Use Committee.

         25                 (Hearing adjourned 12:20 p.m.)
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